From: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

To: Black, Kate (CPC); dianematsuda; Foley, Chris (CPC); Jason Wright; RSEJohns; Nageswaran, Ruchira (CPC); So,
Lydia (CPC)

Cc: Calpin, Megan (CPC); CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY

Subject: FW: RPD: Portsmouth Square Improvement Project - 733 & 750 Kearny Street - Draft Environmental Impact
Report - HPC Distribution

Date: Wednesday, August 04, 2021 11:25:12 AM

Attachments: DEIRSummarySheet PortsmouthSquare - CHINESE.pdf

DEIRSummarySheet PortsmouthSquare - ENGLISH.pdf
NOA PortsmouthSquareDraftEIR - ENGLISH.pdf
NOA PortsmouthSquareDraftEIR FINAL - CHINESE.pdf

Josephine O. Feliciano

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7343 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

Expanded in-person services at the Permit Center at 49 South Van Ness Avenue are
available. Most other San Francisco Planning functions are being conducted remotely. Our
staff are available by e-mail, and the Planning and Historic Preservation Commissions are
convening remotely. The public is encouraged to participate. Find more information on our
services here.

From: Calpin, Megan (CPC) <megan.calpin@sfgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 04, 2021 11:19 AM

To: Feliciano, Josephine (CPC) <josephine.feliciano@sfgov.org>

Subject: RPD: Portsmouth Square Improvement Project - 733 & 750 Kearny Street - Draft
Environmental Impact Report - HPC Distribution

Hi Josie,

Can you please distribute this email and attachments to HPC officers?

Thank you!
Megan

Dear Commissioners,

The San Francisco Planning Department published a Draft Environmental Impact Report
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Case N0 2018-013597ENV
= il SanFranc15co Planner: Megan Calpin
I AT NINO Email: CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR@sfgov.org

PORTSMOUTH SQUARE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
SUMMARY OF DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT

This document has been drafted by San Francisco Planning For more complete materials, please visit
Department staff to provide a summary of the findings of  sfplanning.org/sfceqadocs and search for Portsmouth

the Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Square Improvement Project.

Portsmouth Square Improvement Project. The EIR is Please note that an EIR is intended to analyze and
required by the California Environmental Quality Act disclose the physical environmental effects of a
(CEQA). This summary is not a comprehensive, detailed proposed project; it does not recommend or constitute
guide to the EIR or the CEQA review process. approval of a proposed project.

See attached Notice of Availability for instructions on how to comment on the adequacy of the DEIR.

Proposed Project

The project sponsor, the San Francisco Recreation and Park Department, proposes to:

Renovate the existing park at Portsmouth Square with a new children’s playground, exercise equipment, shade structures,
seating areas, wayfinding, signage, sidewalks, landscaping, terraces, ramps, and a new 8,300-square-foot clubhouse.

Demolish and remove the pedestrian bridge spanning Kearny Street that connects Portsmouth Square to 750 Kearny Street, a
27-story hotel building (currently managed as a Hilton Hotel), which includes the Chinese Culture Center on the third floor.

Re-waterproof the roof of the Portsmouth Square Garage located underneath the park and portions of the adjacent streets
and sidewalks and seismically upgrade portions of the parking garage.

Replace curb cuts and a portion of the streets and sidewalks adjacent to Portsmouth Square for utility connections at the
following intersections: Kearny and Washington streets, Washington Street and Walter U. Lum Place, Walter U. Lum Place and
Clay Street, and Clay and Kearny streets.

Impacts
The Draft EIR identifies the following physical, environmental impacts that, even with mitigation, are significant and unavoidable:

Historic Architectural Resources

The proposed project would demolish the existing pedestrian bridge spanning Kearny Street. The removal of the bridge
would result in the loss of the historically significant physical connection between Chinatown and the Chinese Culture Center
and the hotel at 750 Kearny Street provided by the pedestrian bridge. The project would also result in a significant and
unavoidable impact through demolition of this architecturally significant Brutalist pedestrian bridge structure that was
designed by two master architects and represents a rare property type in San Francisco.

Alternatives Developed and Considered

Under CEQA, an environmental impact report needs to identify a reasonable range of alternatives to a proposed project that
would avoid or lessen the significant and unavoidable impacts identified in the EIR. The Full and Partial Preservation Alternatives
described below were developed to avoid or reduce impacts to the historic architectural resources described above. These
alternatives must be feasible and meet most of the project sponsor’s objectives (goals) for the proposed project. A complete
description and analysis of the Alternatives is available in Chapter 4, Alternatives, of the EIR. The alternatives are summarized
here:

Alternative A: No Project Alternative - A no project alternative is required by CEQA for every EIR. Under the No Project
Alternative, no improvements to the existing park would be made and the pedestrian bridge across Kearny Street would
remain.
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Case N0 2018-013597ENV Planner: Megan Calpin
Email: CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR@sfgov.org

Alternative B: Full Preservation Alternative - This alternative would retain the pedestrian bridge while still renovating the
park. As a result, the new clubhouse would be smaller, about 4,000 square feet in size, compared to 8,300 square feet under
the proposed project, and it would eliminate the upper-level outdoor terrace adjacent to the clubhouse that would be built as
part of the proposed project. All other project features related to renovation of the park would be implemented.

Alternative C: Partial Preservation Alternative - This alternative would be similar to the proposed project except that
following removal of the pedestrian bridge, a new overlook platform would be built at the location of the existing western
bridge terminus within the park. The overlook would function as an architectural reference to the bridge. All other project
features related to renovation of the park would be implemented.

Alternative B, Full Preservation Alternative, would avoid all of the proposed project’s significant and unavoidable impacts by
retaining the pedestrian bridge while still meeting the majority of the project sponsor’s objectives (goals). Therefore, Alternative B
is considered the environmentally superior alternative. Although the Full Preservation Alternative would avoid the significant and
unavoidable impacts of the proposed project, the City may approve the proposed project by finding that the public benefits of the
proposed project outweigh its impacts. This is called a Statement of Overriding Considerations.

Mitigation Measures

The EIR identifies the following mitigation measures to reduce identified environmental impacts. To read the full text of the
mitigation measures, please visit sfplanning.org/sfcegadocs.

CULTURAL RESOURCES
Public Interpretive Program Including Oral History
Plan for Removal, Relocation, Storage, and Reinstallation of All Plaques and Monuments
Documentation of Historical Resources
Salvage Plan

Archeological and Native American Monitoring

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES

Tribal Cultural Resources Preservation Plan and Interpretive Program

NOISE

Construction Noise Control

Timeline for EIR review, project approval, and construction

2021
Draft EIR public review and comment period - August 5, 2021, to 5 p.m. on September 20, 2021
San Francisco Planning Commission DEIR public hearing September 9,2021 - 1 p.m. or later

Publication of Response to Comments document (This document provides written responses to all public comments received
during the public review and comment period.) - Anticipated in Winter 2021/2022

2022
Certification of the Final EIR - date TBD

Project Approval (if any) - San Francisco Recreation and Park Commission
WINTER 2022-2023
If the proposed project or Alternative B or C is approved, project construction begins

Pl San Francisco

anning
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" 49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400
PlSan Francisco San Francisco, CA 94103

annlng 628.652.7600

PUBLIC NOTICE

AVAILABILITY OF A DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

PROJECT INFORMATION PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION
Project Title: Portsmouth Square Improvement Project  Hearing Date: September 9, 2021
Project Address: 733 Kearny Street, 750 Kearny Street Time: 1p.m.or later
Case No.: 2018-013597ENV Location: Remote or in-person hearing
Block/Lot No.: 0209/017,0208/024 (see below and visit
Zoning District(s): P (Public), C-3-O (Downtown, Office) https://sfplanning.org/planning-
Neighborhood: Chinatown, Financial District commission for details)
Project Sponsor:  Cara Ruppert, San Francisco Recreation and  Case Type: Environmental (Draft EIR)
Park Department, 628.652.6645 Hearing Body: Planning Commission
EIR Coordinator:  Megan Calpin - 628652.7508
CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR@sfgov.org

The San Francisco Planning Department (San Francisco Planning) has studied this project’s potential physical
environmental effects and welcomes your comments on the adequacy of the Draft EIR. Refer to the Project Description and
Purpose of Notice sections below for more information.

Project Description

A Draft EIR has been prepared by San Francisco Planning in connection with this project as required by the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to study the project’s potential physical environmental effects.

The project sponsor, the San Francisco Recreation and Park Department, proposes to renovate Portsmouth Square, located
on the block bounded by Washington Street to the north, Kearny Street to the east, Clay Street to the south, and Walter U.
Lum Place to the west, with a new children’s playground, exercise equipment, shade structures, seating areas, wayfinding,
signage, sidewalks, landscaping, terraces, ramps, and a new 8,300-square-foot clubhouse. The proposed project would
demolish and remove the pedestrian bridge spanning Kearny Street that connects Portsmouth Square to 750 Kearny Street,
a 27-story hotel building (currently managed as a Hilton Hotel) which includes the Chinese Culture Center on the third floor.
The proposed project would re-waterproof the roof of the Portsmouth Square Garage located underneath the park and
portions of the adjacent streets and sidewalks, and seismically upgrade portions of the parking garage. The proposed
project would also replace curb cuts and a portion of the streets and sidewalks adjacent to Portsmouth Square for utility
connections. Curb cuts would be replaced at the following intersections: Kearny and Washington streets; Washington Street
and Walter U. Lum Place; Walter U. Lum Place and Clay Street; and Clay and Kearny streets.

Draft EIR: The Draft EIR finds that implementation of the proposed project would lead to significant and unavoidable
project-level impacts related to historic architectural resources. The Draft EIR provides a detailed project description, an
analysis of the physical environmental effects of the project, and identifies feasible mitigation measures and alternatives
that would avoid or lessen the severity of project impacts. The Draft EIR is available for public review and comment on San
Francisco Planning’s website at sfplanning.org/sfceqadocs and at the San Francisco Permit Center, 49 South Van Ness
Avenue, 2nd Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103. Paper copies and electronic copies (on a flash drive) of the Draft EIR are
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Notice of Availability of a Draft EIR and Notice of Public Hearing

available upon request to the EIR Coordinator listed above. Referenced materials are available through the following web
pages: sfplanning.org/sfceqadocs and sfplanning.org/resource/permits-my-neighborhood.

Purpose of Notice

You are not required to take any action. If you wish to comment on the adequacy of the Draft EIR, you may do so in
either or both of the following ways:

Planner: Megan Calpin, EIR Coordinator Live Stream:  https://sfgovtv.org/planning, or live on
Via Mail: 49 South Van Ness Ave, Suite 1400 Cable Channel 78
San Francisco, CA 94103

. . 2021 lp.m.
Via Email: CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR@sfgov.org September 9, 2021, at 1 p.m. or later

Due to the COVID-19 emergency, this hearing may
From August 5, 2021, to 5 p.m. on September 20,2021  ,ccyrin person at San Francisco City Hall or remotely

using videoconferencing technology.

The purpose of the public hearing is for the San Francisco Planning Commission and San Francisco Planning staff to receive
comments on the adequacy and accuracy of the Draft EIR. The commission will not respond to any of the comments or take
action on the project at this hearing. Certification of the Final EIR will be considered at a later hearing. Additional
information may be found on San Francisco Planning’s website or by contacting the EIR coordinator listed above.

General Information about Procedures

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with San
Francisco Planning Commission or staff. All written or oral communications, including submitted personal contact
information, may be made available to the public for inspection and copying upon request and may appear on the
department’s website or in other public documents. Only commenters on the Draft EIR will be permitted to file an appeal of
the certification of the Final EIR to the Board of Supervisors.

At the close of the public review period, San Francisco Planning Department will prepare a Responses to Comments
document to respond to all comments on the Draft EIR presented at the public hearing and received in writing during the
public review period. This Responses to Comments document and all other associated documents will be made available
at sfplanning.org/sfcegadocs.

This notice is being issued during the suspension of certain CEQA filing and posting requirements pursuant to executive
orders N-54-20 and N-80-20, and its issuance complies with the alternative posting requirements stated in the order. This
notice also complies with local requirements under the March 23, 2020, Fifth Supplement to the Mayoral Proclamation
Declaring the Existence of a Local Emergency dated February 25, 2020.

Projects on State Hazardous Materials Lists

As required by CEQA Guidelines section 15087(c)(6), the following information is provided because the project site is
included on the following list compiled pursuant to California Government Code section 65962.5.

List: Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites, State Water Resources Control Board
Regulatory Identification Number: T0607500470

Address of Listed Site: 733 Kearny Street, San Francisco, CA94111

Assessor’s Block/Lot: 0209/017

Date of List: March 7, 1997

PISHRINS 2
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49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400

San Francisco San Francisco, CA 94103
Pla n nlng 628,652.7600
www.sfplanning.org
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(EIR) for the Portsmouth Square Improvement Project at 733 Kearny Street and 750 Kearny
Street today. The notice of availability is attached and the Draft EIR and supporting

documents are available at https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents. The
attached Draft EIR Summary Sheet was also mailed to the distribution list.

The public comment period for the Draft EIR is August 5, 2021 through 5:00 p.m. on
September 20, 2021. During this period, the Planning Department will accept comments on
the adequacy of the Draft EIR. The Historic Preservation Commission will hold a public
hearing on Wednesday, August 18, 2021 to provide its comments on the Draft EIR.

A USB or paper copy of the Draft EIR are available upon request; please contact Megan

Calpin at CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR @sfgov.org or (628) 652-7508.

Thank you,

Megan Calpin

Megan Calpin (she/her), Senior Environmental Planner
Environmental Planning Division

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7508 | www.sfplanning.org

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
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From: Calpin, Megan (CPC)

To: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: RPD: Portsmouth Square Improvement Project - 733 & 750 Kearny Street - Draft Environmental Impact Report -
HPC Distribution

Date: Wednesday, August 04, 2021 11:19:27 AM

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

The San Francisco Planning Department published a Draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR)
for the Portsmouth Square Improvement Project at 733 Kearny Street and 750 Kearny Street
today. The notice of availability is attached and the Draft EIR and supporting documents are

available at https://sfplanning.org/environmental-review-documents. The attached Draft EIR

Summary Sheet was also mailed to the distribution list.

The public comment period for the Draft EIR is August 5, 2021 through 5:00 p.m. on
September 20, 2021. During this period, the Planning Department will accept comments on
the adequacy of the Draft EIR. The Historic Preservation Commission will hold a public hearing

on Wednesday, August 18, 2021 to provide its comments on the Draft EIR.

A USB or paper copy of the Draft EIR are available upon request; please contact Megan Calpin
at CPC.PortsmouthSquareEIR@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7508.

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


mailto:megan.calpin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
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


https://sfplanning.org/node/1978
https://sfplanning.org/covid-19

From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** POPULAR DEEP-CLEANING OPERATION SET TO EXPAND WITH INTENSIVE FOCUS
ON SAN FRANCISCO'S NEIGHBORHOOD CORRIDORS

Date: Wednesday, August 04, 2021 10:24:55 AM

Attachments: 08.04.2021 CleanCorridorsSF.pdf

Jonas P Ionin

Director of Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7589 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Date: Wednesday, August 4, 2021 at 10:17 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** POPULAR DEEP-CLEANING OPERATION SET TO EXPAND WITH
INTENSIVE FOCUS ON SAN FRANCISCO’S NEIGHBORHOOD CORRIDORS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, August 4, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%# PRESS RELEASE ***
POPULAR DEEP-CLEANING OPERATION SET TO EXPAND
WITH INTENSIVE FOCUS ON SAN FRANCISCO’S
NEIGHBORHOOD CORRIDORS

San Francisco Public Works CleanCorridorsSF street cleaning crews will begin deploying on
Thursday to a different commercial district weekly, tackling grime and graffiti to create a
more welcoming environment

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed welcomed the kickoff this week of an
expanded CleanCorridorsSF operation that deploys a large, coordinated team of Public Works
street cleaners to different neighborhood commercial corridors to power wash and sweep the
sidewalks, flush down the roads, dig out weeds and wipe out graffiti.

The program was tested over the last year as a pilot with crews providing intensive cleaning in
a different neighborhood commercial corridor every week, focusing on five blocks over four
hours. Starting Thursday, the operation will expand to eight hours a week and allow crews to
deep clean at least 10 blocks — double the coverage as before.

This week’s operation will put 15 Public Works street cleaners on Fillmore Street on
Thursday, between McAllister and Pine streets. CleanCorridorsSF crews will be on the ground
once a week, rotating through neighborhoods across the City, including the Castro, the South
of Market, West Portal, the Ingleside, North Beach and the Haight.
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*** PRESS RELEASE ***
POPULAR DEEP-CLEANING OPERATION SET TO EXPAND
WITH INTENSIVE FOCUS ON SAN FRANCISCO’S
NEIGHBORHOOD CORRIDORS

San Francisco Public Works CleanCorridorsSF street cleaning crews will begin deploying on
Thursday to a different commercial district weekly, tackling grime and graffiti to create a more
welcoming environment

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed welcomed the kickoff this week of an expanded
CleanCorridorsSF operation that deploys a large, coordinated team of Public Works street
cleaners to different neighborhood commercial corridors to power wash and sweep the
sidewalks, flush down the roads, dig out weeds and wipe out graffiti.

The program was tested over the last year as a pilot with crews providing intensive cleaning in a
different neighborhood commercial corridor every week, focusing on five blocks over four
hours. Starting Thursday, the operation will expand to eight hours a week and allow crews to
deep clean at least 10 blocks — double the coverage as before.

This week’s operation will put 15 Public Works street cleaners on Fillmore Street on Thursday,
between McAllister and Pine streets. CleanCorridorsSF crews will be on the ground once a
week, rotating through neighborhoods across the City, including the Castro, the South of Market,
West Portal, the Ingleside, North Beach and the Haight.

The City’s new budget included $2.1 million for the expanded CleanCorridorsSF program. A
companion workforce development operation, the Power Wash Mobile Team, received $140,000
for a 6-month pilot that employs immigrants with barriers to employment to provide monthly
steam cleaning services in Chinatown the Bayview, Visitacion Valley, the Richmond, the Sunset,
the Excelsior, the Mission and the Fillmore. The stepped-up street cleaning efforts fall under
Shine On SF, a new public-private recovery initiative that aims to rekindle civic pride and
improve the condition of San Francisco’s streets and public spaces.

“These investments will go a long way in making sure that San Francisco shines,” said
Mayor Breed. “Keeping our neighborhoods clean creates a more inviting environment for our
residents, visitors and businesses, and is especially important now as we’re reopening and
welcoming more people back. But we know that the City and our nonprofit partners cannot do
the job alone. It requires all of us to do our part. If you are able, volunteer at a neighborhood
cleanup, contact 311 to report illegal dumping so we can clean it up quickly and, perhaps most
importantly, help us get to a place where people won’t feel it’s OK to mess up our beautiful city
in the first place.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200

SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
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San Francisco Public Works has street cleaning crews on the job around the clock.
CleanCorridorsSF provides the department another tool to perform more intensive, proactive
cleanups. In addition to the cleaning crews, Public Works will deploy outreach staff to let
property owners, residents and merchants know how they can help keep their neighborhood
clean.

“We saw firsthand through the pilot that CleanCorridorsSF gets welcome results,” said Acting
Public Works Director Alaric Degrafinried. “Now that we have additional resources to expand
the operation, thanks to support from Mayor Breed, the Board of Supervisors and our community
partners, we expect greater success in addressing the challenges of keeping San Francisco
looking good.”

HEH
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The City’s new budget included $2.1 million for the expanded CleanCorridorsSF program. A
companion workforce development operation, the Power Wash Mobile Team, received
$140,000 for a 6-month pilot that employs immigrants with barriers to employment to provide
monthly steam cleaning services in Chinatown the Bayview, Visitacion Valley, the Richmond,
the Sunset, the Excelsior, the Mission and the Fillmore. The stepped-up street cleaning efforts
fall under Shine On SF, a new public-private recovery initiative that aims to rekindle civic
pride and improve the condition of San Francisco’s streets and public spaces.

“These investments will go a long way in making sure that San Francisco shines,” said Mayor
Breed. “Keeping our neighborhoods clean creates a more inviting environment for our
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
importantly, help us get to a place where people won’t feel it’s OK to mess up our beautiful
city in the first place.”

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
the operation, thanks to support from Mayor Breed, the Board of Supervisors and our
community partners, we expect greater success in addressing the challenges of keeping San
Francisco looking good.”
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Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW ‘VAX TO YOU’ PROGRAM
Date: Wednesday, August 04, 2021 9:15:27 AM

Attachments: 08.03.2021 Vax to You.pdf

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

From: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 at 1:50 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW ‘VAX TO YOU’ PROGRAM

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, August 3, 2021

Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%% PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO LAUNCHES NEW ‘VAX TO YOU’
PROGRAM

The Department of Public Health’s Mobile Vaccine Unit to offer vaccinations by appointment
to groups of people in their homes or workplaces

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (SFDPH) today announced that the City’s Mobile Vaccine Unit will vaccinate small
groups of five to 12 people in their homes and workplaces by appointment when they organize
groups of interested individuals.

“Our COVID response continues to lead with equity by removing barriers and ensuring
everyone has easy access to this life saving vaccine,” said Mayor Breed. “We currently have a
broad network of vaccine availability throughout San Francisco for drop-ins, appointments,
and mobile teams that will bring the vaccine to our most vulnerable residents, especially those
who are homebound. Now, we can provide a mobile unit to go right to your door when you
gather a few friends, family members or coworkers.”

The Mobile Vaccine Unit has been operating since February and has administered an
estimated 6,000 doses at approximately 350 events to date throughout the City. The vulnerable
populations served include homebound individuals, seniors in residential facilities, and those
living in permanent supportive housing, as well as people experiencing homelessness, both at
Shelter In Place and Safe Sleep sites, as well as those who are unsheltered.
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

The Department of Public Health’s Mobile Vaccine Unit to offer vaccinations by appointment to
groups of people in their homes or workplaces

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

“Our COVID response continues to lead with equity by removing barriers and ensuring everyone
has easy access to this life saving vaccine,” said Mayor Breed. “We currently have a broad
network of vaccine availability throughout San Francisco for drop-ins, appointments, and mobile
teams that will bring the vaccine to our most vulnerable residents, especially those who are
homebound. Now, we can provide a mobile unit to go right to your door when you gather a few
friends, family members or coworkers.”

The Mobile Vaccine Unit has been operating since February and has administered an estimated
6,000 doses at approximately 350 events to date throughout the City. The vulnerable populations
served include homebound individuals, seniors in residential facilities, and those living in
permanent supportive housing, as well as people experiencing homelessness, both at Shelter In
Place and Safe Sleep sites, as well as those who are unsheltered.

Starting today, people can contact the City by calling 628-652-2700, emailing
sfvaxnow@sfdph.org; or by going to sf.gov/vaxtoyou to request this new expanded service,
which will be available Tuesday through Saturday. All three brands of vaccine—Johnson &
Johnson, Moderna, and Pfizer—will be available. The vaccines are free, no insurance is required,
and nurses will be onsite to answer questions. The service is available if you have 5-12 eligible
people among your family, friends, or workplace.

“While vaccination rates are high overall throughout San Francisco, we are still concerned about
our communities that have a lower vaccination uptake,” said Health Director Dr. Grant Colfax.
“With the surge in cases due to the Delta variant, getting vaccinated as soon as possible is more
important than ever. Innovative programs like this will help us serve more people by bringing a
life-saving COVID vaccine right to their doorstep.”

Anyone interested in additional information on San Francisco’s vaccine programs is encouraged
to go to Get vaccinated against COVID-19 | San Francisco (sf.gov) to learn more.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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Starting today, people can contact the City by calling 628-652-2700, emailing
sfvaxnow(@sfdph.org; or by going to sf.gov/vaxtoyou to request this new expanded service,
which will be available Tuesday through Saturday. All three brands of vaccine—Johnson &
Johnson, Moderna, and Pfizer—will be available. The vaccines are free, no insurance is
required, and nurses will be onsite to answer questions. The service is available if you have 5-
12 eligible people among your family, friends, or workplace.

“While vaccination rates are high overall throughout San Francisco, we are still concerned
about our communities that have a lower vaccination uptake,” said Health Director Dr. Grant
Colfax. “With the surge in cases due to the Delta variant, getting vaccinated as soon as
possible is more important than ever. Innovative programs like this will help us serve more
people by bringing a life-saving COVID vaccine right to their doorstep.”

Anyone interested in additional information on San Francisco’s vaccine programs is

encouraged to go to Get vaccinated against COVID-19 | San Francisco (sf.gov) to learn more.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNOUNCE FULL
IN-PERSON SERVICE AT NEIGHBORHOOD BRANCHES BY AUGUST 17

Date: Tuesday, August 03, 2021 9:37:52 AM

Attachments: 08.03.2021 SFPL.pdf

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

Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 at 8:07 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC
LIBRARY ANNOUNCE FULL IN-PERSON SERVICE AT NEIGHBORHOOD BRANCHES BY AUGUST 17

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, August 3, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*#% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC
LIBRARY ANNOUNCE FULL IN-PERSON SERVICE AT

NEIGHBORHOOD BRANCHES BY AUGUST 17

The Library will sunset its SFPL To-Go front door pickup service as it reopens 11
neighborhood branch libraries and resumes pre-pandemic hours at the Main Library after
Labor Day

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and City Librarian Michael Lambert today
announced that San Francisco Public Library (SFPL) will reopen 11 neighborhood branches
for full in-person service by August 17, beginning today with the Park and West Portal
locations. After the Labor Day holiday, the Main Library will also resume its pre-pandemic
hours, providing evening service three days a week.

Today marks the final wave of reopenings after the Library closed all locations for indoor
service in March 2020, during which time hundreds of SFPL employees were deployed as
Disaster Service Workers (DSW) supporting the City’s COVID-19 response, and

10 neighborhood library branches served as community hubs to assist the City’s most
vulnerable youth with distance learning.

“I am excited to announce that our neighborhood libraries are reopening for in-person
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*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC
LIBRARY ANNOUNCE FULL IN-PERSON SERVICE AT
NEIGHBORHOOD BRANCHES BY AUGUST 17

The Library will sunset its SFPL To-Go front door pickup service as it reopens 11 neighborhood
branch libraries and resumes pre-pandemic hours at the Main Library after Labor Day

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and City Librarian Michael Lambert today
announced that San Francisco Public Library (SFPL) will reopen 11 neighborhood branches for
full in-person service by August 17, beginning today with the Park and West Portal locations.
After the Labor Day holiday, the Main Library will also resume its pre-pandemic hours,
providing evening service three days a week.

Today marks the final wave of reopenings after the Library closed all locations for indoor service
in March 2020, during which time hundreds of SFPL employees were deployed as Disaster
Service Workers (DSW) supporting the City’s COVID-19 response, and 10 neighborhood library
branches served as community hubs to assist the City’s most vulnerable youth with distance
learning.

“l am excited to announce that our neighborhood libraries are reopening for in-person service,”
said Mayor Breed. “Like so many City services, our libraries were hit hard by the pandemic with
staff forced to find innovative ways to continue serving our communities. | want to thank the San
Francisco Public Library staff for supporting our city through this challenging time and their
commitment to keeping our libraries operating and accessible.”

SFPL encompasses 28 locations, one of which, the Mission Branch Library, is closed for
renovation. Also reopening this month in addition to the Park and West Portal branches are:
Ingleside, North Beach, and Sunset (August 9); Anza, Marina, Portola and Potrero (August 10);
Golden Gate Valley (August 16) and lastly, Merced (August 17). While the Mission Branch is
closed for renovation, the Library is establishing a temporary location to serve Mission District
residents. Patrons can check out books from the Bookmobile at Harrison and 20th streets,
Tuesdays and Thursdays, 2:00-6:00 p.m.

Detailed information for hours and locations can be found at sfpl.org/reopening.

Although most library staff have returned to their primary roles after serving as Disaster Service
Workers, staffing levels remain too low to resume pre-pandemic hours at the neighborhood
branch libraries due to a large number of vacancies. Likewise, in-person public programs such as
storytimes and author talks will be phased in as staffing allows.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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“We said we would get it done by the time school starts, and we are keeping to that promise,”
says City Librarian Michael Lambert. “I want to thank the public for their ongoing patience and
support during this time. We are incredibly excited to welcome you back through our doors, and
we look forward to reintroducing in-person public programs in the weeks to follow.”

“Our branch library staff have put a tremendous amount of care and dedication toward reopening
branch libraries for the public,” stated Chief of Branches Catherine Delneo. “Our Branch Library
staff have done so much during the past year to serve our community and are so glad that we are
now able to get back to doing what we love to do the most - welcoming everyone back inside
San Francisco's branch libraries.”

The Main Library returns to pre-pandemic hours the day after Labor Day on September 7,
providing more service after work and school hours. The Main Library will offer service until
8:00 p.m. on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday and until 6:00 p.m. on other days, and it will
also open at 9:00 a.m. Monday through Thursday to serve morning patrons.

“We are so appreciative of the community support we’ve received during our phased reopening,
and while there’s yet a bit further to go, Main is just too beautiful a library with too many minor
miracles happening each day to hold back any longer. We are excited to resume regular service
hours in September,” said Tom Fortin, Chief of the Main Library.

As part of the City’s Summer Together initiative, SFPL is giving away 10 books to all San
Francisco Unified School District students. Students and caregivers can pick up their book
bundles at any location. Additionally, the Library’s Summer Stride program is in full swing with
programs for all ages. Individuals who complete 20 hours of Library activity (reading, attending
an event, and visiting a library all count) can earn prizes and a coveted 2021 Summer Stride tote
bag with original artwork by Bay Area artist Kaylani Juanita. Summer Stride and the Summer
Together book pickup officially end on September 12. More details at sfpl.org/summerstride.

Safety Measures
Masks are required at all SFPL locations.
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service,” said Mayor Breed. “Like so many City services, our libraries were hit hard by the
pandemic with staff forced to find innovative ways to continue serving our communities. I
want to thank the San Francisco Public Library staff for supporting our city through this
challenging time and their commitment to keeping our libraries operating and accessible.”

SFPL encompasses 28 locations, one of which, the Mission Branch Library, is closed for
renovation. Also reopening this month in addition to the Park and West Portal branches are:
Ingleside, North Beach, and Sunset (August 9); Anza, Marina, Portola and Potrero (August
10); Golden Gate Valley (August 16) and lastly, Merced (August 17). While the Mission
Branch is closed for renovation, the Library is establishing a temporary location to serve
Mission District residents. Patrons can check out books from the Bookmobile at Harrison and
20th streets, Tuesdays and Thursdays, 2:00-6:00 p.m.

Detailed information for hours and locations can be found at sfpl.org/reopening.

Although most library staff have returned to their primary roles after serving as Disaster
Service Workers, staffing levels remain too low to resume pre-pandemic hours at the
neighborhood branch libraries due to a large number of vacancies. Likewise, in-person public
programs such as storytimes and author talks will be phased in as staffing allows.

“We said we would get it done by the time school starts, and we are keeping to that promise,”
says City Librarian Michael Lambert. “I want to thank the public for their ongoing patience
and support during this time. We are incredibly excited to welcome you back through our
doors, and we look forward to reintroducing in-person public programs in the weeks to
follow.”

“Our branch library staff have put a tremendous amount of care and dedication toward
reopening branch libraries for the public,” stated Chief of Branches Catherine Delneo. “Our
Branch Library staff have done so much during the past year to serve our community and are
so glad that we are now able to get back to doing what we love to do the most - welcoming
everyone back inside San Francisco's branch libraries.”

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

“We are so appreciative of the community support we’ve received during our phased
reopening, and while there’s yet a bit further to go, Main is just too beautiful a library with too
many minor miracles happening each day to hold back any longer. We are excited to resume
regular service hours in September,” said Tom Fortin, Chief of the Main Library.

As part of the City’s Summer Together initiative, SFPL is giving away 10 books to all San
Francisco Unified School District students. Students and caregivers can pick up their book
bundles at any location. Additionally, the Library’s Summer Stride program is in full swing
with programs for all ages. Individuals who complete 20 hours of Library activity (reading,
attending an event, and visiting a library all count) can earn prizes and a coveted 2021 Summer
Stride tote bag with original artwork by Bay Area artist Kaylani Juanita. Summer Stride and
the Summer Together book pickup officially end on September 12. More details at
sfpl.org/summerstride.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SFMTA WELCOME CABLE CARS BACK TO SAN
FRANCISCO

Date: Monday, August 02, 2021 8:39:34 AM

Attachments: 08.02.2021 Cable Cars.pdf

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

Date: Monday, August 2, 2021 at 7:10 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SFMTA WELCOME CABLE CARS
BACK TO SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Monday, August 2, 2021

Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%# PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED AND SFMTA WELCOME CABLE

CARS BACK TO SAN FRANCISCO

The SFMTA will run mock service and will solicit the public’s help and feedback ahead of the
official return to revenue service

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency (SFMTA) today welcomed back cable car service to San Francisco
streets. Following the successful completion of operator training and mechanical inspections,
the public is invited onboard to provide feedback on vehicle headways and customer
experience during the month of August. Cable car revenue service will resume in September.

“I am so excited to announce that cable car service is starting back up today,” said Mayor
London Breed. “Our cable cars are part of what makes San Francisco a world-class
destination, and their return is just the latest sign that our city is bouncing back. I want to
thank everyone at the SFMTA for their work during the pandemic to keep our transit system
running and for everything they’ve done to bring back service in the City.”

Last March, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the SFMTA temporarily halted cable car
service as part of the City’s emergency response. This decision was made to best protect
operators and the public. Muni resources were then shifted to a core network to serve essential
workers and accommodate physical distancing on San Francisco’s most utilized lines. The
result was the longest cable car shutdown in the system since the full system reconstruction in
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

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Municipal Transportation
Agency (SFMTA) today welcomed back cable car service to San Francisco streets. Following
the successful completion of operator training and mechanical inspections, the public is invited
onboard to provide feedback on vehicle headways and customer experience during the month of
August. Cable car revenue service will resume in September.

“I am so excited to announce that cable car service is starting back up today,” said Mayor
London Breed. “Our cable cars are part of what makes San Francisco a world-class destination,
and their return is just the latest sign that our city is bouncing back. I want to thank everyone at
the SFMTA for their work during the pandemic to keep our transit system running and for
everything they’ve done to bring back service in the City.”

Last March, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the SFMTA temporarily halted cable car
service as part of the City’s emergency response. This decision was made to best protect
operators and the public. Muni resources were then shifted to a core network to serve essential
workers and accommodate physical distancing on San Francisco’s most utilized lines. The result
was the longest cable car shutdown in the system since the full system reconstruction in the
1980s, requiring significant work to reboot the system and bring it back better. Now, as the City
shifts its focus to supporting economic recovery, locals, regional visitors, and tourists will see the
triumphant homecoming of the cable cars and hear the iconic bells chiming from Union Square
to Fisherman’s Wharf—and all of the backdrops in between.

Starting today, we will ask the public to help the agency roll out a soft launch of the system by
riding the lines when cable car conductors are making stops and inviting passengers aboard for
the duration of “mock service.” This mock service will be irregular, not following a particular
schedule as the SFMTA works out the official rollout of the system. The SFMTA will not be
collecting fares for cable car rides during the month of August in exchange for the public’s help
riding the system.

“Our cable cars are a symbol of San Francisco and central to the city’s economic recovery,” said
Jeffrey Tumlin, SFMTA Director of Transportation. “It’s a treat to work with the public during
our mock service as we gear up to officially welcome back cable cars this fall.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141



mailto:mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

https://www.sfmta.com/travel-updates/covid-19-muni-core-service-network



LoONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

By early September, all three cable cars will resume revenue service: the Powell-Hyde, the
Powell-Mason and the California lines. Service is planned to run from 7:00 a.m. until about
10:00 p.m., though cars returning to the cable car barn after 10:00 p.m. will continue to take

riders to Chinatown.

Anyone interested in cable car service updates is encouraged to subscribe to text or e-mail
updates for more information.
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the 1980s, requiring significant work to reboot the system and bring it back better. Now, as the
City shifts its focus to supporting economic recovery, locals, regional visitors, and tourists will
see the triumphant homecoming of the cable cars and hear the iconic bells chiming from
Union Square to Fisherman’s Wharf—and all of the backdrops in between.

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
collecting fares for cable car rides during the month of August in exchange for the public’s
help riding the system.

“Our cable cars are a symbol of San Francisco and central to the city’s economic recovery,”
said Jeffrey Tumlin, SFMTA Director of Transportation. “It’s a treat to work with the public
during our mock service as we gear up to officially welcome back cable cars this fall.”

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

HiHt
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LAUNCH OF NEW STREET TEAM TO STOP
DRUG OVERDOSES AND OTHER OVERDOSE PREVENTION MEASURES

Date: Friday, July 30, 2021 10:11:31 AM

Attachments: 07.30.2021 Overdose Prevention.pdf

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

Date: Friday, July 30, 2021 at 10:11 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LAUNCH OF NEW
STREET TEAM TO STOP DRUG OVERDOSES AND OTHER OVERDOSE PREVENTION MEASURES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, July 30, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES LAUNCH OF NEW
STREET TEAM TO STOP DRUG OVERDOSES AND OTHER
OVERDOSE PREVENTION MEASURES

As part of the Mayor’s budget investments, San Francisco is launching the Street Overdose
Response Team to provide care and support for 700 people experiencing homelessness at high
risk of overdose.

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (DPH), and the San Francisco Fire Department today announced the launch on Monday
of a new Street Overdose Response Team (SORT) that, along with other overdose prevention
initiatives in the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget, aims to lower the record number of drug
overdoses in the City.

Like many communities throughout the country, San Francisco has seen a rapid increase in
drug overdoses in recent years due to the proliferation of the powerful, synthetic opioid
fentanyl, which is 50 times stronger than heroin. Among those most at risk are people
experiencing homelessness, whose rate of overdose deaths has doubled in the past year and
account for at least one-quarter of all overdose deaths in the City. Additionally, data shows
that over 50% of people who die from a drug overdose had prior contact with Fire Department
EMS personnel.
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
risk of overdose

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed, the San Francisco Department of Public Health
(DPH), and the San Francisco Fire Department today announced the launch on Monday of a new
Street Overdose Response Team (SORT) that, along with other overdose prevention initiatives in
the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget, aims to lower the record number of drug overdoses in the
City.

Like many communities throughout the country, San Francisco has seen a rapid increase in drug
overdoses in recent years due to the proliferation of the powerful, synthetic opioid fentanyl,
which is 50 times stronger than heroin. Among those most at risk are people experiencing
homelessness, whose rate of overdose deaths has doubled in the past year and account for at least
one-quarter of all overdose deaths in the City. Additionally, data shows that over 50% of people
who die from a drug overdose had prior contact with Fire Department EMS personnel.

In response, the City is urgently rolling out new interventions. Chief among them is SORT,
which will proactively identify, engage, and follow up with individuals who have survived an
overdose in order to prevent another, possibly fatal one from occurring.

“We know that overdose deaths are preventable and every person who dies is someone’s son,
daughter, friend, or neighbor. It is urgent that we save lives by doing what we know will work
best,” said Mayor Breed. “The Street Overdose Response Team is focused on helping people
who are most at risk get the help they need to start their recovery. SORT is part of a package of
new and expanded investments we are making this year to flatten the curve of the drug overdose
epidemic and even lower the numbers of these tragic deaths.”

The City is investing $13.2 million this year in overdose prevention that in addition to SORT
include:
e Opening the SOMA RISE Center this fall to provide 20 temporary beds for people who
are intoxicated to come in safely off the streets and be connected to care and services,
including housing.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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e Expanded access to buprenorphine through telemedicine, increasing the hours at DPH’s
Behavioral Health Pharmacy and delivery of buprenorphine to “high risk” housing sites
and other locations.

e Round-the-clock hours at the Market Street Clinic, an opioid treatment clinic at Civic
Center that provides on-demand services for methadone, buprenorphine, and counseling
and primary medical care.

e Widespread distribution of naloxone to settings such as hospitals, primary care clinics,
substance use treatment programs, housing sites, and public settings like food pantries
and dining halls — anywhere substance users access services.

e Expansion of the evidence-based efforts to incentivize people to continue addiction
treatments.

In 2018, DPH’s Street Medicine team was the first in the nation to bring opioid treatment
directly to people experiencing homelessness with substance use disorders. The Street Overdose
Response Team (SORT) builds on San Francisco’s successful street outreach model of care,
which also includes the Street Crisis Response Team. Specifically, SORT is tasked with
connecting with people in the moment they are being resuscitated, and as they come out of
hospitals, clinics or other settings from drug overdoses, and offering them services that address
substance use disorders. These include the opioid use disorder medicine buprenorphine, which
not only helps wean people off opioids but can also directly prevent overdoses; rescue Kits that
include the opioid-blocker naloxone; educational materials; and support getting into substance
use treatment facilities, housing or shelter as a safe exit from the streets.

The team launches on August 2 with an initial crew consisting of a street medicine specialist
from the Department of Public Health and a community paramedic from the Fire Department
who will provide immediate care and support within 72 hours of an overdose.

Later this fall, SORT will ramp up to include ongoing and regular care and case management for
individuals experiencing homelessness who have survived an overdose with additional capacities
such as ongoing medication treatment, primary care and mental health services, and referrals to
residential care and other treatment programs. At full expansion, SORT will consist of specialists
with a range of expertise who can meet a patient’s unique needs, including medical specialists
such as doctors and nurses; behavioral health specialists including counselors and
psychotherapists, and peer counselors with related, lived experience.

“People who survive an overdose are at heightened risk for a subsequent overdose, including a

fatal overdose,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “With the Street Overdose Response
Team we can take a targeted and coordinated approach to reach people who need help the most
and provide tailored information and care to save lives.”

SORT will respond citywide to overdose calls, initially 12 hours a day, and by early 2022 when

fully deployed, will operate 24/7. Patients are identified by hospitals, the 911 system (such as

dispatch, and fire or ambulance crews), through referrals from community partners, and other

sources. The teams will make sure no one is lost follow up, and in collaboration with other street
1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
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outreach teams and a network of providers, can find and maintain contact with patients over
time. The team anticipates building its case list to approximately 700 individuals within the first
year of operations.

“Every day our paramedics, EMTs, and fire fighters respond to dozens of overdose incidents,
some of which end in tragedy despite our best efforts,” said San Francisco Fire Chief Jeanine
Nicholson. “Because of this, the Fire Department is uniquely situated to lead the initial
identification, engagement and outreach to individuals suffering from opioid use disorder. The
Street Overdose Response Team builds on the City’s expanding efforts to actively engage our
most vulnerable populations. Our Community Paramedics are impactful, street-level providers
who will bring coordinated care directly to those in need.”

Previously, people experiencing homelessness with substance use disorders did not receive a
proactive approach and depended on their actively seeking out care from the City’s behavioral
health system. SORT is part of the approach directed by the Mental Health SF legislation, which
passed in 2019, to guarantee mental health care to all San Franciscans who lack insurance and
prioritize people who are experiencing homelessness. The legislation provides services and
coordinated support to people experiencing homelessness who have mental health and substance
use disorders.

Media availability will be provided on August 2, 2021, 8:00 AM - 8:30 AM, at the UN Plaza
Fountain located at Hyde and Market streets. This will show the first team going into
service at their start time of 8:00 AM. Public Information Officers and crew members will
be present for comment. For more information please contact: jonathan.baxter@sfgov.org
or 415-660-0545.

it
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
who are most at risk get the help they need to start their recovery. SORT is part of a package
of new and expanded investments we are making this year to flatten the curve of the drug
overdose epidemic and even lower the numbers of these tragic deaths.”

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

o Expanded access to buprenorphine through telemedicine, increasing the hours at DPH’s
Behavioral Health Pharmacy and delivery of buprenorphine to “high risk” housing sites
and other locations.

o Round-the-clock hours at the Market Street Clinic, an opioid treatment clinic at Civic
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

o Expansion of the evidence-based efforts to incentivize people to continue addiction
treatments.

In 2018, DPH’s Street Medicine team was the first in the nation to bring opioid treatment
directly to people experiencing homelessness with substance use disorders. The Street
Overdose Response Team (SORT) builds on San Francisco’s successful street outreach model
of care, which also includes the Street Crisis Response Team. Specifically, SORT is tasked
with connecting with people in the moment they are being resuscitated, and as they come out
of hospitals, clinics or other settings from drug overdoses, and offering them services that
address substance use disorders. These include the opioid use disorder medicine
buprenorphine, which not only helps wean people off opioids but can also directly prevent
overdoses; rescue kits that include the opioid-blocker naloxone; educational materials; and
support getting into substance use treatment facilities, housing or shelter as a safe exit from the
streets.

The team launches on August 2 with an initial crew consisting of a street medicine specialist
from the Department of Public Health and a community paramedic from the Fire Department
who will provide immediate care and support within 72 hours of an overdose.

Later this fall, SORT will ramp up to include ongoing and regular care and case management
for individuals experiencing homelessness who have survived an overdose with additional
capacities such as ongoing medication treatment, primary care and mental health services, and
referrals to residential care and other treatment programs. At full expansion, SORT will
consist of specialists with a range of expertise who can meet a patient’s unique needs,
including medical specialists such as doctors and nurses; behavioral health specialists
including counselors and psychotherapists, and peer counselors with related, lived experience.



“People who survive an overdose are at heightened risk for a subsequent overdose, including a
fatal overdose,” said Dr. Grant Colfax, Director of Health. “With the Street Overdose
Response Team we can take a targeted and coordinated approach to reach people who need
help the most and provide tailored information and care to save lives.”

SORT will respond citywide to overdose calls, initially 12 hours a day, and by early 2022
when fully deployed, will operate 24/7. Patients are identified by hospitals, the 911 system
(such as dispatch, and fire or ambulance crews), through referrals from community partners,
and other sources. The teams will make sure no one is lost follow up, and in collaboration with
other street outreach teams and a network of providers, can find and maintain contact with
patients over time. The team anticipates building its case list to approximately 700 individuals
within the first year of operations.

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
health system. SORT is part of the approach directed by the Mental Health SF legislation,
which passed in 2019, to guarantee mental health care to all San Franciscans who lack
insurance and prioritize people who are experiencing homelessness. The legislation provides
services and coordinated support to people experiencing homelessness who have mental health
and substance use disorders.

Media availability will be provided on August 2, 2021, 8:00 AM — 8:30 AM, at the UN
Plaza Fountain located at Hyde and Market streets. This will show the first team going
into service at their start time of 8:00 AM. Public Information Officers and crew
members will be present for comment. For more information please contact:

jonathan.baxter@sfgov.org or 415-660-0545.
HiH
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF JANICE MIRIKITANI
Date: Friday, July 30, 2021 9:39:39 AM

Attachments: 07.29.2021 Janice Mirikitani.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, July 29, 2021 at 3:20 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF JANICE
MIRIKITANI

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 29, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.org

##% STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF JANICE
MIRIKITANI

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement on the
news of the passing of Janice Mirikitani.

“Jan Mirikitani was one of our City’s true lights. She was a visionary, a revolutionary artist,
and the very embodiment of San Francisco’s compassionate spirit. As a poet, including as Poet
Laureate of this City from 2000 to 2002, she used the power of her words to further the fight
for equality and to call for a more just and peaceful world. Through her work at Glide
Memorial Church, along with her husband the Reverend Cecil Williams, she served our most
vulnerable residents for decades and provided a place of refuge and love for all. She was
boundless in her energy and in her devotion to this City and to her fellow San Franciscans. My
heart goes out to her friends and family, especially to Cecil. She was loved and will never be
forgotten.”

HiHt
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 29, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ON THE PASSING OF
JANICE MIRIKITANI

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed today issued the following statement on the
news of the passing of Janice Mirikitani.

“Jan Mirikitani was one of our City’s true lights. She was a visionary, a revolutionary artist, and
the very embodiment of San Francisco’s compassionate spirit. As a poet, including as Poet
Laureate of this City from 2000 to 2002, she used the power of her words to further the fight for
equality and to call for a more just and peaceful world. Through her work at Glide Memorial
Church, along with her husband the Reverend Cecil Williams, she served our most vulnerable
residents for decades and provided a place of refuge and love for all. She was boundless in her
energy and in her devotion to this City and to her fellow San Franciscans. My heart goes out to
her friends and family, especially to Cecil. She was loved and will never be forgotten.”
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY; CTYPLN - CP TEAM (TAC - Preservation); Hillis, Rich (CPC)
Subject: HPC Calendars for August 4, 2021

Date: Thursday, July 29, 2021 5:26:20 PM

Attachments: 20210804 hpc.pdf

20210804 hpc.docx
HPC Advance - 20210804.xIsx
HPC Hearing Results 2021.docx

Commissioners,
Attached are your Calendars for August 4, 2021.

Cheers,

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
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

Notice of Hearing
&
Agenda

REMOTE HEARING

via video and teleconferencing

Wednesday, August 4, 2021
12:30 p.m.
Regular Meeting

Commissioners:
Diane Matsuda, President
Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,
Ruchira Nageswaran, Lydia So, Jason Wright

Commission Secretary:
Jonas P. lonin

Hearing Materials are available at:
Historic Preservation Commission Packet and Correspondence

Commission Hearing Broadcasts:
Live stream: https://www.sfgovtv.org/planning

Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:
commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7536 at least 48 hours in advance.
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Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original
inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone
have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional
territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging
the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.

Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City
and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations
are open to the people's review.

For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-
7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco
Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

Privacy Policy
Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act

and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted.

Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its
commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made
available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This
means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to
the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect
or copy.

Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through
Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove,
Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.

Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness
stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6,9, 19, 21,47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services,
call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.

Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking
Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall.

Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations,
please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or
commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.

Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related
disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.

SPANISH: Agenda para la Comision de Preservacion de Edificios y Lugares Histdricos (Historic Preservation Commission). Si desea asistirala
audiencia, y quisiera obtener informacién en Espafiol o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7550. Por favor llame por lo
menos 48 horas de anticipacion a la audiencia.

CHINESE: JFE o R B &5 s, BB e LU s S W Bhal E R Bk i, 5530 (628) 652-7550, A LB Er ST 2 IR
/D ag i /INFERR H R

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o
para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7550. Mangyaring tumawag
nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig.

RUSSIAN: NoBecTka gHA KoMmmccum no 3awmTe NnaMaTHUKOB MCTOPMM. 3a MOMOLLbIO MEPEBOAYMKA UM 3@ BCTIOMOTraTe bHbIM
CNyXOBbIM YCTPOMNCTBOM Ha BPEMSI CNyLUaHWIA obpaLllanTech No Homepy (628) 652-7550. 3anpockl 4OMKHbI 4eNaTbC MUHUMYM
3a 48 YacoB 0o Ha4ana crnyLlaHus.
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San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission Wednesday, August 4, 2021

Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the
numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive
diirectives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus.

On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings
remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing
and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit
their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfqov.org. Visit the
SFGovTV website (https://sfplanning.org/) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television
station.

The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001. You will also need an access code to join the
meeting. The access code for this hearing is 146 784 1361. This information will also be provided on the
Department’s webpagehttps://sfplanning.ora/ and during the live SFGovIV broadcast.

As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the
current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.

ROLL CALL:
President: Diane Matsuda
Commissioners: Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns,
Ruchira Nageswaran, Lydia So, Jason Wright

A. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public
that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect
to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is
reached in the meeting. Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three
minutes.

The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the
posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment. In response to public comment,
the commission is limited to:

(1) responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2) requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or

(3) directing staff to place the item on a future agenda. (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))

B. DEPARTMENT MATTERS

1. Department Announcements

Notice of Remote Hearing & Agenda Page 30f 8
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San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission Wednesday, August 4, 2021

C

COMMISSION MATTERS

2.

3.

President’s Report and Announcements

Consideration of Adoption:
e Draft Minutes for ARC May 19, 2021
e Draft Minutes for HPC July 21, 2021

Adoption of Commission Minutes — Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote
yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.
Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they
did not attend the meeting.

Commission Comments & Questions

e Disclosures.

¢ Inquiries/Announcements. Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may
make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to
the Commissioner(s).

e Future Meetings/Agendas. At this time, the Commission may discuss and take
action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that
could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of
the Historic Preservation Commission.

CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE

The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date. The Commission may choose
to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear
the item on this calendar.

REGULAR CALENDAR

5.

2021-002831DES (P. LAVALLEY: (628) 652-7372)
ONE MONTGOMERY STREET (AKA 1-25 MONTGOMERY STREET), CROCKER NATIONAL BANK
BUILDING - northwest corner of Post Street, Assessor’s Parcel Block No. 0292, Lots 001A and
002 (District 3). Consideration to Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark
Designation of One Montgomery Street (aka 1-25 Montgomery Street) as an individual
Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. One Montgomery
Street was initiated for designation by Supervisor Peskin on December 15, 2020 and
approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 12, 2021 (See BOS File No. 201404). One
Montgomery Street, designed by architects Willis Polk and Charles E. Gottschalk, and
constructed in two phases in 1908 and 1920 for First National Bank (later Crocker National
Bank), is historically significant for its association with reconstruction in the Financial District
following the 1906 Earthquake and Fire. The building is also architecturally and historically
significant as an excellent and well-preserved example of an early twentieth century
banking temple building type in the Italian Renaissance Revival-style with grand interiors
that exhibits high artistic value, was designed (in its first phase) by recognized master
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architect Willis Polk, and includes the work of master craftsman Arthur Putnam. The subject
property is in a C-3-0 (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and 250-S Height and Bulk District.
Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

6. 2021-002874DES (P. LAVALLEY: (628) 652-7372)
447 BATTERY STREET (aka JONES-THIERBACH COFFEE COMPANY BUILDING) — northwest
corner of Merchant Street, Assessor’s Parcel Block 0206, Lot 002 (District 3). Consideration to
Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of 447 Battery Street (aka
Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company Building) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant
to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. 447 Battery Street was initiated for designation by
Supervisor Peskin and approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 12, 2021 (See BoS
File No. 201298). 447 Battery Street, designed by architect Frank S. Van Trees and
constructed in 1907 for Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company, is historically significant for its
association with the San Francisco coffee industry and reconstruction in the Produce Market
(now Financial District) following the 1906 Earthquake and Fire. The building is also
architecturally significant as a surviving example of the brick store-and-warehouse type that
was common during the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, but that has become
increasingly rare in the broader North of Market. The subject property is in a C-3-0
(Downtown-Office) Zoning District and 200-S Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Recommendation for Approval

7. 2021-001636PTA (J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)
161 STEUART STREET - east side between Mission and Howard Streets; Lot 007 in Assessor’s
Block 3715 (District 6). Request for a Permit to Alter to install a new inclined lift meeting
accessibility requirements at the existing exterior stair alcove for the primary (eastern),
Embarcadero entry. The lift will be attached to existing stair treads with a partial lift run and
lower landing at the sidewalk. 161 Steuart Street is located in a C-3-O (Downtown-Office)
Zoning District and 84-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action
for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code
Section 31.04(h).
Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

8. 2019-021884ENV (J. GREVING: (628)652-7553)
2500 MARIPOSA STREET — north side between Hampshire and Bryant Streets, Assessor’s
Block 3971, Lot 001 (District 10). Review and Comment before the Historic Preservation
Commission on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the proposed project. The project
proposes to demolish the existing two-story Potrero Trolly Coach Division Maintenance and
Operations Facility for the construction of a new maintenance and operations building. The
new, approximately 1,300,000-gross-square-foot structure would occupy the site and rise
to heights ranging from 75 to 100 feet across the site. It would contain a three-level,
approximately 75-foot-tall replacement transit facility plus a mix of commercial and
residential uses in the remainder of the project as part of a joint development program
between SFMTA and a private project co-sponsor. The building at 2500 Mariposa Street is a
historic resource for purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The
project site is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and 65-X Height and Bulk Limit.
Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment
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9. 2020-010382CRV (M. GIACOMUCCI: (628) 652-7414; J.VIMR: (628) 652-7319)
DELEGATION OF MINOR SCOPES OF WORK TO THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT — Amendment
to the Delegation for Planning Department Preservation staff to review, approve and deny
Administrative Certificates of Appropriateness for individual Landmarks and Landmark
Districts pursuant to Article 10, Section 1006.2(a) of the Planning Code and Minor Permits to
Alter for Significant and Contributory Buildings and all buildings within Conservation
Districts pursuant to Article 11, Section 1111.1 of the Planning Code.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

ADJOURNMENT
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Hearing Procedures
The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing

schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org.

Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item.

¢+ When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.
Speakers will hear two alarms. The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining. The second louder sound
indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.

Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are
prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use
of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).

For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary,
shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:

1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect,

engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4, Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the
hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by
the Chair;

8. Amotion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue
to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.

w

Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of
four (4) votes. A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any
Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present
constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).

Hearing Materials
Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

e  Planning Department Case Executive Summary

e  Planning Department Case Report

o Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions
e Public Correspondence

Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record
only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner. Correspondence may be emailed
directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.

Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation
Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103-2414. Written comments received by the close of the business
day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official
record.

Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be

received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing. All submission packages must
be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.
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Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for
distribution.

Appeals
The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation

Commission hearing.

Case Type Case Suffix Appeal Period* Appeal Body
Certificate of Appropriateness COA (A) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**
CEQA Determination ENV (E) 30 calendar days Board of Supervisors
Permit to Alter/Demolish PTA (H) 30 calendar days Board of Appeals**

**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project
requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal. An appeal of an Office
Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.

For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880. For more
information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or
board.of supervisors@sfgov.org.

Challenges
Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a

Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation
Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Proposition F
Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter

pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community
Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island
Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the
Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months
after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.
For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San

Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying
activity. For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness
Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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Disability and language accommodations available upon request to:

 commissions.secretary@sfgov.org or (628) 652-7536 at least 48 hours in advance.





[bookmark: _Hlk37062483]Ramaytush Ohlone Acknowledgement 

The Historic Preservation Commission acknowledges that we are on the unceded ancestral homeland of the Ramaytush Ohlone, who are the original inhabitants of the San Francisco Peninsula. As the indigenous stewards of this land and in accordance with their traditions, the Ramaytush Ohlone have never ceded, lost, nor forgotten their responsibilities as the caretakers of this place, as well as for all peoples who reside in their traditional territory. As guests, we recognize that we benefit from living and working on their traditional homeland. We wish to pay our respects by acknowledging the Ancestors, Elders, and Relatives of the Ramaytush Ohlone community and by affirming their sovereign rights as First Peoples.



Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. 



For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 409; phone (415) 554-7724; fax (415) 554-7854; or e-mail at sotf@sfgov.org. Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Library and on the City’s website at www.sfbos.org/sunshine.

[bookmark: _Hlk879281] 

Privacy Policy

Personal information that is provided in communications to the Planning Department is subject to disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be redacted. 



Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Planning Department and its commissions. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Department regarding projects or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Department does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Department and its commissions may appear on the Department’s website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy.



Accessible Meeting Information

Commission hearings are held in Room 400 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is open to the public Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. and is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances. A wheelchair lift is available at the Polk Street entrance.  



Transit: The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center. Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center or Van Ness stations). MUNI bus routes also serving the area are the 5, 6, 9, 19, 21, 47, 49, 71, and 71L. For more information regarding MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485 or call 311.



Parking: Accessible parking is available at the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage (McAllister and Polk), and at the Performing Arts Parking Garage (Grove and Franklin). Accessible curbside parking spaces are located all around City Hall. 



Disability Accommodations: To request assistive listening devices, sign language interpreters, readers, large print agendas or other accommodations, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589, or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Language Assistance: To request an interpreter for a specific item during the hearing, please contact the Commission Secretary at (628) 652-7589), or commissions.secretary@fgov.org at least 48 hours in advance of the hearing.



Allergies: In order to assist the City in accommodating persons with severe allergies, environmental illness, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, please refrain from wearing scented products (e.g. perfume and scented lotions) to Commission hearings.



SPANISH:  Agenda para la Comisión de Preservación de Edificios y Lugares Históricos (Historic Preservation Commission).  Si desea asistir a la audiencia, y quisiera obtener información en Español o solicitar un aparato para asistencia auditiva, llame al (628) 652-7550. Por favor llame por lo menos 48 horas de anticipación a la audiencia.

CHINESE: 歷史保護委員會議程。聽證會上如需要語言協助或要求輔助設備，請致電(628) 652-7550。請在聽證會舉行之前的至少48個小時提出要求。

FILIPINO: Adyenda ng Komisyon para sa Pangangalaga ng Kasaysayan (Historic Preservation Commission Agenda). Para sa tulong sa lengguwahe o para humiling ng Pantulong na Kagamitan para sa Pagdinig (headset), mangyari lamang na tumawag sa (628) 652-7550. Mangyaring tumawag nang maaga (kung maaari ay 48 oras) bago sa araw ng Pagdinig. 

RUSSIAN: Повестка дня Комиссии по защите памятников истории. За помощью переводчика или за вспомогательным слуховым устройством на время слушаний обращайтесь по номеру (628) 652-7550. Запросы должны делаться минимум за 48 часов до начала слушания.



Remote Access to Information and Participation 



[bookmark: _Hlk37426845]In accordance with Governor Newsom’s statewide order for all residents to Shelter-in-place - and the numerous preceding local and state proclamations, orders and supplemental directions - aggressive directives have been issued to slow down and reduce the spread of the COVID-19 virus. 



On May 29, 2020, the Historic Preservation Commission was authorized to conduct their hearings remotely. Therefore, the Historic Preservation Commission meeting will be held via videoconferencing and allow for remote public comment. The Commission strongly encourages interested parties to submit their comments in writing, in advance of the hearing to commissions.secretary@sfgov.org. Visit the SFGovTV website (https://sfplanning.org/) to stream the live meetings or watch on a local television station. 

[bookmark: _Hlk48037677]The public comment call-in line number is (415) 655-0001.  You will also need an access code to join the meeting.  The access code for this hearing is 146 784 1361_______________. This information will also be provided on the Department’s webpage https://sfplanning.org/ and during the live SFGovTV broadcast.



As the COVID-19 emergency progresses, please visit the Planning website regularly to be updated on the current situation as it affects the hearing process and the Historic Preservation Commission.



 ROLL CALL:		

	President:	Diane Matsuda

		Commissioners:                	Kate Black, Chris Foley, Richard S.E. Johns, 

			Ruchira Nageswaran, Lydia So, Jason Wright



A.	GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT



At this time, members of the public may address the Commission on items of interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Commission except agenda items. With respect to agenda items, your opportunity to address the Commission will be afforded when the item is reached in the meeting.  Each member of the public may address the Commission for up to three minutes.



The Brown Act forbids a commission from taking action or discussing any item not appearing on the posted agenda, including those items raised at public comment.  In response to public comment, the commission is limited to: 



(1)  responding to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; or

(2)  requesting staff to report back on a matter at a subsequent meeting; or 

(3)  directing staff to place the item on a future agenda.  (Government Code Section 54954.2(a))



B.	DEPARTMENT MATTERS



1. 1.	Department Announcements	



	

C.	COMMISSION MATTERS 



2.	President’s Report and Announcements

	

3.	Consideration of Adoption:

· Draft Minutes for ARC May 19, 2021

· Draft Minutes for HPC July 21, 2021



Adoption of Commission Minutes – Charter Section 4.104 requires all commissioners to vote yes or no on all matters unless that commissioner is excused by a vote of the Commission.  Commissioners may not be automatically excluded from a vote on the minutes because they did not attend the meeting.



4.	Commission Comments & Questions

· Disclosures.

· Inquiries/Announcements.  Without discussion, at this time Commissioners may make announcements or inquiries of staff regarding various matters of interest to the Commissioner(s).

· Future Meetings/Agendas.  At this time, the Commission may discuss and take action to set the date of a Special Meeting and/or determine those items that could be placed on the agenda of the next meeting and other future meetings of the Historic Preservation Commission.



D.	CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS PROPOSED FOR CONTINUANCE



The Commission will consider a request for continuance to a later date.  The Commission may choose to continue the item to the date proposed below, to continue the item to another date, or to hear the item on this calendar.



E.	CONSENT CALENDAR



All matters listed hereunder constitute a Consent Calendar, are considered to be routine by the Historic Preservation Commission, and may be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Commission.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Commission, the public, or staff so requests, in which event the matter shall be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered as a separate item at this or a future hearing.





FE.	REGULAR CALENDAR  



5.	2021-002831DES	(P. LAVALLEY: (628) 652-7372)

ONE MONTGOMERY STREET (AKA 1-25 MONTGOMERY STREET), CROCKER NATIONAL BANK BUILDING –  Located on the northwest corner of Montgomery and Post Sstreets, Assessor’s Parcel Block No. 0292, Lots 001A and 002 (District 3). Consideration to Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of One Montgomery Street (aka 1-25 Montgomery Street) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. One Montgomery Street was initiated for designation by Supervisor Peskin on December 15, 2020 and approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 12, 2021 (See BOS File No. 201404). One Montgomery Street, designed by architects Willis Polk and Charles E. Gottschalk, and constructed in two phases in 1908 and 1920 for First National Bank (later Crocker National Bank), is historically significant for its association with reconstruction in the Financial District following the 1906 Earthquake and Fire. The building is also architecturally and historically significant as an excellent and well-preserved example of an early twentieth century banking temple building type in the Italian Renaissance Revival-style with grand interiors that exhibits high artistic value, was designed (in its first phase) by recognized master architect Willis Polk, and includes the work of master craftsman Arthur Putnam. The subject property is in a C-3-O (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and a 250-S Height and Bulk District.

Preliminary Recommendation: ApprovalAdopt a Recommendation for Approval



6.	2021-002874DES	(P. LAVALLEY: (628) 652-7372)

447 BATTERY STREET (aka JONES-THIERBACH COFFEE COMPANY BUILDING) JONES-THIERBACH COFFEE COMPANY BUILDING, 447 BATTERY STREET – Located on the northwest corner of Battery and Merchant Sstreets, Assessor’s Parcel Block 0206, Lot 002 (District 3). Consideration to Recommend to the Board of Supervisors Landmark Designation of 447 Battery Street (aka Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company Building) as an individual Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.2 of the Planning Code. 447 Battery Street was initiated for designation by Supervisor Peskin and approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 12, 2021 (See BoS File No. 201298). 447 Battery Street, designed by architect Frank S. Van Trees and constructed in 1907 for Jones-Thierbach Coffee Company, is historically significant for its association with the San Francisco coffee industry and reconstruction in the Produce Market (now Financial District) following the 1906 Earthquake and Fire. The building is also architecturally significant as a surviving example of the brick store-and-warehouse type that was common during the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, but that has become increasingly rare in the broader North of Market. The subject property is in a C-3-O (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and a 200-S Height and Bulk District. 

Preliminary Recommendation: ApprovalAdopt a Recommendation for Approval



7.	2021-001636PTA	(J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

161 STEUART STREET – east side between Mission and Howard Streets; Lot 007 in Assessor’s Block 3715 (District 6). Request for a Permit to Alter to install a new inclined lift meeting accessibility requirements at the existing exterior stair alcove for the primary (eastern), Embarcadero entry. The lift will be attached to existing stair treads with a partial lift run and lower landing at the sidewalk. 161 Steuart Street is located in a C-3-O (Downtown-Office) Zoning District and a 84-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h)..  

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions



8.	2019-021884ENV	(J. GREVING: (628)652-7553)

2500 MARIPOSA STREET – Located north side between 17th Street to the north, Hampshire Street to the east, Mariposa Street to the south, and Bryant Streets to the west, Assessor’s Block 3971, Lot 001 (District 10). Review and Comment before the Historic Preservation Commission on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the proposed project. The project proposes to demolish the existing two-story Potrero Trolly Coach Division Maintenance and Operations Facility for the construction of a new maintenance and operations building. The new, approximately 1,300,000-gross-square-foot structure would occupy the site and rise to heights ranging from 75 to 100 feet across the site. It would contain a three-level, approximately 75-foot-tall replacement transit facility plus a mix of commercial and residential uses in the remainder of the project as part of a joint development program between SFMTA and a private project co-sponsor. The building at 2500 Mariposa Street is a historic resource for purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project site is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and a 65-X Height and Bulk Limit.

Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment



9.	2020-010382CRV	(M. GIACOMUCCI: (628) 652-7414; J. VIMR: (628) 652-7319)

DELEGATION OF MINOR SCOPES OF WORK TO THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT – Amendment to the Delegation for Planning Department Preservation staff to review, approve and deny Administrative Certificates of Appropriateness for individual Landmarks and Landmark Districts pursuant to Article 10, Section 1006.2(a) of the Planning Code and Minor Permits to Alter for Significant and Contributory Buildings and all buildings within Conservation Districts pursuant to Article 11, Section 1111.1 of the Planning Code.

Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

	

ADJOURNMENT




Hearing Procedures

The Historic Preservation Commission holds public hearings on the first and third Wednesday, of most months. The full hearing schedule for the calendar year and the Commission Rules & Regulations may be found online at: www.sfplanning.org. 



Public Comments: Persons attending a hearing may comment on any scheduled item. 

· When speaking before the Commission in City Hall, Room 400, please note the timer indicating how much time remains.  Speakers will hear two alarms.  The first soft sound indicates the speaker has 30 seconds remaining.  The second louder sound indicates that the speaker’s opportunity to address the Commission has ended.



Sound-Producing Devices Prohibited: The ringing of and use of mobile phones and other sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order the removal of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a mobile phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices (67A.1 Sunshine Ordinance: Prohibiting the use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices at and during public meetings).



For most cases that are considered by the Historic Preservation Commission, after being introduced by the Commission Secretary, shall be considered by the Commission in the following order:



1. Presentation by Staff;

2. Presentation by the Project Sponsor’s Team (which includes: the sponsor, representative, legal counsel, architect, engineer, expeditor and/or any other advisor) for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

3. Public testimony from supporters of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

4. Presentation by Organized Opposition recognized by the Commission President through written request prior to the hearing for a period not to exceed ten (10) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

5. Public testimony from opponents of the Project not to exceed three (3) minutes, at the discretion of the Chair;

6. Staff follow-up and/or conclusions;

7. Public comment portion of the hearing shall be closed and deliberation amongst the Commissioners shall be opened by the Chair;

8. A motion to approve; approve with conditions; approve with amendments and/or modifications; disapprove; or continue to another hearing date, if seconded, shall be voted on by the Commission.



Every Official Act taken by the Commission must be adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, a minimum of four (4) votes.  A failed motion results in the disapproval of the requested action, unless a subsequent motion is adopted. Any Procedural Matter, such as a continuance, may be adopted by a majority vote of members present, as long as the members present constitute a quorum (four (4) members of the Commission).



Hearing Materials

Each item on the Agenda may include the following documents:

· Planning Department Case Executive Summary

· Planning Department Case Report

· Draft Motion or Resolution with Findings and/or Conditions

· Public Correspondence



Materials submitted to the Historic Preservation Commission prior to a scheduled hearing will become part of the public record only when the materials are also provided to the Commission Secretary and/or Project Planner.  Correspondence may be emailed directly to the Commission Secretary at: commissions.secretary@sfgov.org.  



Persons unable to attend a hearing may submit written comments regarding a scheduled item to: Historic Preservation Commission, 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, San Francisco, CA  94103-2414.  Written comments received by the close of the business day prior to the hearing will be brought to the attention of the Historic Preservation Commission and made part of the official record.  



Advance Submissions: To allow Commissioners the opportunity to review material in advance of a hearing, materials must be received by the Planning Department reception eight (8) days prior to the scheduled public hearing.  All submission packages must be delivered to 49 South Van Ness, 14th Floor, by 5:00 p.m. and should include fifteen (15) copies.



Day-of Submissions: Material related to a calendared item may be distributed at the hearing. Please provide ten (10) copies for distribution. 



Appeals

The following is a summary of appeal rights associated with the various actions that may be taken at a Historic Preservation Commission hearing.



		Case Type

		Case Suffix

		Appeal Period*

		Appeal Body



		Certificate of Appropriateness

		COA (A)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**



		CEQA Determination 

		ENV (E)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Supervisors



		Permit to Alter/Demolish

		PTA (H)

		30 calendar days

		Board of Appeals**







**An appeal of a Certificate of Appropriateness or Permit to Alter/Demolish may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires Board of Supervisors approval or if the project is associated with a Conditional Use Authorization appeal.  An appeal of an Office Allocation may be made to the Board of Supervisors if the project requires a Conditional Use Authorization.



For more information regarding the Board of Appeals process, please contact the Board of Appeals at (415) 575-6880.  For more information regarding the Board of Supervisors process, please contact the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors at (415) 554-5184 or board.of.supervisors@sfgov.org. 



Challenges

Pursuant to Government Code Section 65009, if you challenge, in court, the approval of (1) a Certificate of Appropriateness, (2) a Permit to Alter, (3) a Landmark or Historic District designation, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Historic Preservation Commission, at, or prior to, the public hearing.



Proposition F

Under Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 1.127, no person or entity with a financial interest in a land use matter pending before the Board of Appeals, Board of Supervisors, Building Inspection Commission, Commission on Community Investment and Infrastructure, Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission, Port Commission, or the Treasure Island Development Authority Board of Directors, may make a campaign contribution to a member of the Board of Supervisors, the Mayor, the City Attorney, or a candidate for any of those offices, from the date the land use matter commenced until 12 months after the board or commission has made a final decision or any appeal to another City agency from that decision has been resolved.  For more information about this restriction, visit sfethics.org.

 

San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance [SF Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Section 21.00-2.160] to register and report lobbying activity.  For more information about the Lobbyist Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 220, San Francisco, CA 94102; phone (415) 252-3100; fax (415) 252-3112; and online http://www.sfgov.org/ethics.
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Advance

				To:		Historic Preservation Commission

				From:		Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

				Re:		Advance Calendar

						All items and dates are tentative and subject to change.



				August 4, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2021-002831DES		1 Montgomery Bank Building										LaValley

						Landmark designation initiated by BOS

		2021-002874DES		447 Battery Street										LaValley

						Landmark designation initiated by BOS

		2021-001636PTA		161 Steuart Street										Vimr

						ADA compliant lift at the main entry

		2019-021884ENV		SFMTA: 2500 Mariposa Street 										Greving

						Potrero Yard Muni Bus Maintenance Facility - DEIR

		2020-010382CRV		ACOA & MPTA Delegation Agreement 2020-2021										Vimr

						Delegation

				August 18, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Applications

		2020-009076COA		900 Innes Ave				fr: 4/7; 5/5; 6/2; 6/16; 7/21						Westhoff

						rehabilitation of The Shipwright’s Cottage 

		2019-023623COA		130 Townsend Street										Westhoff

						vertical addition to the existing building and the new construction of a separate and completely autonomous building

		2018-013597ENV		Portsmouth Square Improvement										Calpin

						Draft EIR

		2018-013597ENV		733 Kearny Street										Taylor

						HPC  Draft EIR

				Housing Element										Caltagirone

						Informational

				September 1, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2021-006260PCA		State-Mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit Controls										Flores

						Planning Code Amendment

		2021-007060DES		200 Rhode Island										Westhoff

						Informational  Landmark  Designation  of the Takahashi Trading Company

				September 15, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		Various		Legacy Business Registry Applications										Wilborn

						Applications

		2019-022850ENV		1101-1123 Sutter Street										Greving

						Review and comment on DEIR

		2020-003803DES		Golden Gate Valley Carnegie Library										Bishop

						Initiation of Landmark Designation

				October 6, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner

		2020-003803DES		Golden Gate Valley Carnegie Library										Bishop

						Landmark Designation

				October 20, 2021						 

		Case No.						Continuance(s)		CONT.		NOTES		Planner
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To:		Staff

From:	Jonas P. Ionin, Director of Commission Affairs

Re:		Historic Preservation Commission Hearing Results

	

NEXT RESOLUTION No:  1195

NEXT MOTION No:  0442

NEXT COMMENT LETTER:  0089

M = Motion; R = Resolution; L = HPC Comment Letter

   July 21, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for July 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to August 18, 2021

		+6-0 (Wright recused)



		M-0441

		2021-004293COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved with Conditions as amended to include:

1. ARG Comments related to patching;

2. This temporary installation is to run concurrent with the Monumental Reckoning installation and expire on June 19, 2023;

3. Mock-up installation and removal to ensure no damage, prior to full installation;

4. Gasketing is to be further explored; and

5. Core drilling is no longer a part of the installation.

		+7 -0







   July 7, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for June 16, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1192

		2021-005812PCA

		Establishing the Sunset Chinese Cultural District Ordinance [Board File 210599]

		Ikezoe

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009640OTH

		Centering Planning on Racial & Social Equity

		Flores

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		R-1193

		2021-001791PCA

		Review Of Large Residence Developments [Board File No. 210116]

		Merlone

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with Staff Modifications, adding a Whereas clause, encouraging the Planning Commission and Supervisor to take additional time to provide clarity and address the concerns raised by the HPC.

		+7 -0



		M-0440

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Approved with Conditions

		+7 -0



		R-1194

		2021-004690CRV

		555 19th Street

		Giacomucci

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2019-014146ENV

		520 John Muir Drive

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		

		2017-012086ENV

		770 Woolsey Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







  June 16, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 19, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Continued to July 7, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to July 21, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-0437

		2021-001102PTA

		660 Market Street

		Vimr

		Approved

		+7 -0



		M-0438

		2020-010710COA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Approved (Option 2) adding a finding indicating a strong recommendation for an on-site interpretive program, with the expectation that the Planning Commission will make it a condition of approval as part of the project’s entitlement.

		+7 -0



		

		2018-013597ENV

		Portsmouth Square Improvement Project

		Taylor

		Reviewed and Commented

		



		M-0439

		2015-001033COA-02

		940 Battery Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6-0 (Foley absent)







   May 19, 2021 ARC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-005897PTA

		233 Geary Street

		Vimr

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		

		2021-004293COA

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Reviewed and Commented  

		







   May 19, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for May 5, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010710COA

		400 California Street

		Enchill

		Continued to June 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		R-1185

		2021-004010LBR

		Pier 45 Shed D-1

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+6 -0 (Matsuda recused)



		R-1186

		2021-004011LBR

		6040 Geary Boulevard

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1187

		2021-004018LBR             

		3067 Sacramento Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1188

		2021-004015LBR

		25 Russia Avenue

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1189

		2021-004017LBR

		618 Broadway

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1190

		2021-004016LBR            

		1745 Folsom Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1191

		2021-001853DES

		San Francisco Eagle Bar, 396-398 12th Street

		Westhoff

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0







  May 5, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		Continued to June 2, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0436

		2021-000965COA

		1201 Ortega Street

		Cisneros

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1184

		2021-001721DES

		“The Making of a Fresco Showing the Building of a City,” 800 Chestnut Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval as amended.

		+7 -0







   April 21, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for April 7, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted 

		+7 -0



		R-1183

		2021-002933PCA

		Simplify Restrictions on Small Business [Board File No. 210285] –

		Nickolopoulos

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval with staff modifications.

		+7 -0







   April 7, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for March 3, 2021

		Lynch

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		M-0434

		2020-010391PTA

		1 Kearny Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+7 -0



		R-1175

		2021-005280LBR

		298 Pacific Avenue

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1176

		2021-002581LBR

		358 Noe Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1177

		2021-002571LBR

		550 Bayshore Boulevard

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1178

		2021-002569LBR

		650 04th Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1179

		2021-002579LBR

		1735 Mission Street

		Balba

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1180

		2021-002570LBR

		937 Cole Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1181

		2021-002891LBR

		4115 19th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0435

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Approved

		+7 -0



		

		2020-009076COA

		900 Innes Avenue

		Westhoff

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to May 5, 2021

		+7 -0



		

		2014.0263U

		Residence Parks Historic Context Statement

		McMillen

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		R-1182

		2021-000795DES

		Ingleside Terraces Sundial and Sundial Park

		McMillen

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2016-013156SRV

		Citywide Cultural Resources Survey

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		



		

		2015-007181OTH

		Preservation Reporting and Landmarks Update

		Boudreaux

		Reviewed and Commented  

		







   March 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 17, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-004724COA

		1045 Sansome Street

		Langlie

		Continued to April 7, 2021

		+7 -0



		M-0432

		2021-000208COA

		1800 Mission Street

		Salgado

		Approved

		+6 -0 (Matsuda absent) 



		R-1171

		2021-001263LBR

		848 Washington Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1172

		2021-001264LBR  

		350 Hayes Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1173

		2021-001265LBR

		888 Brannan Street, Suite 100

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1174

		2021-001255LBR

		4494 Mission Street

		Wu

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		M-0433

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		Approved as revised by Staff and amended to include:

1. Eight weeks for Rec/Park to provide materials re: the generator and fencing; and 

2. An update hearing in 12 months.

		+7 -0







   February 17, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for February 3, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1170

		2020-011305DES

		Lyon-Martin House, 649-651 Duncan Street

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval, striking any reference to the adjacent vacant parcel.

		+6 -1 (Hyland against)



		

		2019-022126COA-04

		55 Hagiwara Tea Garden Drive

		Taylor

		After hearing and closing public comment, Continued to March 3, 2021

		+6 -0 (Johns absent) 







   February 3, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 20, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1167

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2020-2021 Proposed Department Budget

		Landis

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1168

		2021-000331LBR

		250 Napoleon Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1169

		2020-000330LBR

		5166 3rd Street

		Bishop

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		

		2019-022850ENV

		1101-1123 Sutter Street

		Greving

		Reviewed and Commented

		







   January 20, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for January 6, 2021

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		

		2020-010430CRV

		FY 2021-2023 Proposed Department Budget and Work Program

		Landis

		

		



		R-1165

		2020-009613DES

		2778 24th Street (Casa Sanchez Building)  

		LaValley

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0



		R-1166

		2020-009614DES

		2868 Mission Street (Mission Cultural Center)

		 Corrette

		Adopted a Recommendation for Initiation

		+7 -0







  January 6, 2021 HPC Hearing Results:

		Action No.

		Case No.

		 

 

		Planner

		Action

		Vote



		

		

		Draft Minutes for December 16, 2020

		Ionin

		Adopted

		+7 -0



		R-1160

		2020-011535LBR

		415 Geary Street

		Wilborn

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1161

		2020-011546LBR

		3003 03rd Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1162

		2020-011549LBR

		1376 Haight Street

		Gunther

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1163

		2020-011536LBR

		1792 Haight Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0



		R-1164

		2020-011534LBR

		2720 24th Street

		Agnihotri

		Adopted a Recommendation for Approval

		+7 -0
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES COMPLETION OF HAIGHT STREET TRANSIT
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Date: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 12:56:41 PM

Attachments: 07.28.2021 Haight Street Improvement.pdf

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

Date: Wednesday, July 28, 2021 at 12:24 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES COMPLETION OF
HAIGHT STREET TRANSIT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, July 28, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

#%# PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED CELEBRATES COMPLETION OF
HAIGHT STREET TRANSIT IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

New streetscape design enhances pedestrian safety, activates public spaces, and creates a
more vibrant Haight Street corridor

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed joined City leaders, merchants, and
community members at a ribbon-cutting ceremony today to celebrate the completion of the
Upper Haight Transit Improvement and Pedestrian Realm Project. The transformative project
improves pedestrian safety, enhances transit efficiency, and builds on the neighborhood’s
vibrant character.

The two-year, $22.3 million project was based on a community-supported vision to revitalize
and improve street safety and public spaces in the historic Haight-Ashbury neighborhood. The
redesign of Haight Street enables the most significant possible degree of flexibility by
reimagining urban spaces that can evolve with the changing demands of the community.

“The Haight has a rich history that attracts tourists and locals alike, and with the completion of
this streetscape project, we are making this historic neighborhood more inviting for all,” said
Mayor Breed. “As we emerge from this pandemic and begin to see our city come alive again,
it’s critical that we invest in the cultural vibrancy of our neighborhoods and provide our small
businesses with the support they need to help drive our economic recovery.”


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/
https://sfplanninggis.org/pim/
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

New streetscape design enhances pedestrian safety, activates public spaces, and creates a more
vibrant Haight Street corridor

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed joined City leaders, merchants, and community
members at a ribbon-cutting ceremony today to celebrate the completion of the Upper Haight
Transit Improvement and Pedestrian Realm Project. The transformative project improves
pedestrian safety, enhances transit efficiency, and builds on the neighborhood’s vibrant
character.

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
Mayor Breed. “As we emerge from this pandemic and begin to see our City come alive again, it’s
critical that we invest in the cultural vibrancy of our neighborhoods and provide our small
businesses with the support they need to help drive our economic recovery.”

The project was designed to incorporate numerous safety features, including new pedestrian-
scale lighting, ADA-compliant curb ramps, and expanded bus-boarding areas. The project also
replaced the aging sewer system to bolster resiliency, repaved seven blocks of Haight Street
between Stanyan Street and Central Avenue, and added new street trees and sidewalks to
beautify the neighborhood. Crews performed additional sewer and repaving work on Masonic
Avenue between Haight and Waller streets.

“The improvements are a welcome addition to the well-known neighborhood with its trove of
independent retail establishments, cafes, and restaurants,” said Sunshine Powers, president of the
Haight Street Merchants Association. “This project provides many wonderful enhancements that
retain the character of this magnificent, sparkly corridor and will keep us thriving.”

Construction began in September 2018 and continued uninterrupted during San Francisco’s Stay-
at-Home Order, which allowed work to continue on essential infrastructure. This project
supported more than 130 construction and electrical trade jobs at a time when putting people to
work was crucial. San Francisco Public Works oversaw the design and construction management

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

for the project. Key partners included the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, San
Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Office of Economic and Workforce Development, and
the Department of Technology.

Through the Office of Economic and Workforce Development’s (OEWD) Construction
Mitigation Program, OEWD staff partnered with Public Works to provide small businesses with
the necessary support to help minimize construction impacts.

“The redesign and safety enhancements bring much-needed improvements to this historic part of
the City. The project serves as a great example of successful collaboration among City agencies
in partnership with the community and our elected representatives to enhance neighborhood
safety and livability,” said Acting Public Works Director Alaric Degrafinried.

“The changes we see on Haight Street today include a faster travel time for Muni passengers,
bringing meaningful improvements to the community as we emerge from the pandemic.” said
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Director of Transportation, Jeffrey Tumlin.
“The signals are designed to prioritize the 7-Haight-- one of our highest ridership lines. Muni is
delivering similar projects on most of our lines and we are proud to offer these improvements on
Haight Street.”

“This project is another great example of City agencies working together to bring much needed
improvements to our communities,” said SFPUC Acting General Manager Michael Carlin. “By
upgrading and replacing our aging infrastructure, we are ensuring the safe and reliable delivery
of critical sewer services to our customers.”

Funding for the improvements came from various voter-approved sources, including Proposition
K sales tax revenue, the 2011 Roadway Improvement and Street Safety Bond, and the 2014 San
Francisco Transportation and Road Improvement Bond. Additional funding sources included the
City’s General Fund, Prop AA Grant, and Wastewater Enterprise Renewal and Replacement
Funds.

“The Transportation Authority is proud to provide transportation sales tax and other funds for
this project, which began with the community's advocacy for safety and streetscape
improvements along Haight Street,” said Transportation Authority Executive Director Tilly
Chang. "The new traffic signals, pedestrian scale lighting, bulb-outs and curb ramps will enhance
community access for the neighborhood and help achieve San Francisco's citywide Vision Zero
goal as well."

Additional project information is available at www.sfpublicworks.org/upper-haight.
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
independent retail establishments, cafes, and restaurants,” said Sunshine Powers, president of
the Haight Street Merchants Association. “This project provides many wonderful
enhancements that retain the character of this magnificent, sparkly corridor and will keep us
thriving.”

Construction began in September 2018 and continued uninterrupted during San Francisco’s
Stay-at-Home Order, which allowed work to continue on essential infrastructure. This project
supported more than 130 construction and electrical trade jobs at a time when putting people
to work was crucial. San Francisco Public Works oversaw the design and construction
management for the project. Key partners included the San Francisco Municipal
Transportation Agency, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Office of Economic and
Workforce Development, and the Department of Technology.

Through the Office of Economic and Workforce Development’s (OEWD) Construction
Mitigation Program, OEWD staff partnered with Public Works to provide small businesses
with the necessary support to help minimize construction impacts.

“The redesign and safety enhancements bring much-needed improvements to this historic part
of the City. The project serves as a great example of successful collaboration among City
agencies in partnership with the community and our elected representatives to enhance
neighborhood safety and livability,” said Acting Public Works Director Alaric Degrafinried.

“The changes we see on Haight Street today include a faster travel time for Muni passengers,
bringing meaningful improvements to the community as we emerge from the pandemic.” said
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency Director of Transportation, Jeffrey Tumlin.
“The signals are designed to prioritize the 7-Haight-- one of our highest ridership lines. Muni
is delivering similar projects on most of our lines and we are proud to offer these
improvements on Haight Street.”

“This project is another great example of City agencies working together to bring much
needed improvements to our communities,” said SFPUC Acting General Manager Michael
Carlin. “By upgrading and replacing our aging infrastructure, we are ensuring the safe and
reliable delivery of critical sewer services to our customers.”

Funding for the improvements came from various voter-approved sources, including
Proposition K sales tax revenue, the 2011 Roadway Improvement and Street Safety Bond, and
the 2014 San Francisco Transportation and Road Improvement Bond. Additional funding
sources included the City’s General Fund, Prop AA Grant, and Wastewater Enterprise
Renewal and Replacement Funds.

“The Transportation Authority is proud to provide transportation sales tax and other funds for
this project, which began with the community's advocacy for safety and streetscape



improvements along Haight Street,” said Transportation Authority Executive Director Tilly
Chang. "The new traffic signals, pedestrian scale lighting, bulb-outs and curb ramps will
enhance community access for the neighborhood and help achieve San Francisco's citywide
Vision Zero goal as well."

Additional project information is available at www.sfpublicworks.org/upper-haight.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEW MAJOR STEP IN CITY’S EFFORT TO
TRANSITION TO PUBLIC POWER

Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 1:27:49 PM

Attachments: 07.27.2021 CPUC Valuation Request.pdf

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

Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 at 12:30 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEW MAJOR STEP IN CITY’S
EFFORT TO TRANSITION TO PUBLIC POWER

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, July 27, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

**%* PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEW MAJOR STEP IN
CITY’S EFFORT TO TRANSITION TO PUBLIC POWER

San Francisco requests the State determine the value of PG&E'’s local electric assets as the
next step in acquiring them in order to provide clean, affordable and reliable public power

San Francisco, CA —The City and County of San Francisco submitted a petition today with
the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) requesting a formal determination of the
value of PG&E’s local electric infrastructure, the next step in San Francisco’s efforts to
acquire the utility’s city-based electric facilities and complete the City’s transition to public
power.

Owning the grid would allow San Francisco to provide clean, reliable and affordable
electricity throughout the City while also taking meaningful climate action, like reaching its
set target of

using 100% renewable electricity by 2025. Controlling energy use and delivery would also
allow San Francisco to ensure equity in electric service and workforce development while
providing transparency and public accountability in rates, service and safety.

The move comes after the City made a $2.5 billion offer in 2019 to purchase PG&E’s local
electric assets following years of the investor-owned utility’s failure to provide reasonable,
safe, and cost-effective service to its ratepayers. The City resubmitted its offer when PG&E
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, July 27, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
SAN FRANCISCO ANNOUNCES NEW MAJOR STEP IN CITY’S
EFFORT TO TRANSITION TO PUBLIC POWER

San Francisco requests the State determine the value of PG&E'’s local electric assets as the next
step in acquiring them in order to provide clean, affordable and reliable public power

San Francisco, CA —The City and County of San Francisco submitted a petition today with the
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) requesting a formal determination of the value
of PG&E’s local electric infrastructure, the next step in San Francisco’s efforts to acquire the
utility’s city-based electric facilities and complete the City’s transition to public power.

Owning the grid would allow San Francisco to provide clean, reliable and affordable electricity
throughout the City while also taking meaningful climate action, like reaching its set target of
using 100% renewable electricity by 2025. Controlling energy use and delivery would also allow
San Francisco to ensure equity in electric service and workforce development while providing
transparency and public accountability in rates, service and safety.

The move comes after the City made a $2.5 billion offer in 2019 to purchase PG&E’s local
electric assets following years of the investor-owned utility’s failure to provide reasonable, safe,
and cost-effective service to its ratepayers. The City resubmitted its offer when PG&E emerged
from bankruptcy in 2020. PG&E rejected both San Francisco purchase offers, and in the last year
has begun seeking to impose more than $1 billion in unnecessary charges on City customers
while delaying basic power hookups on a range of public buildings from schools to new transit
projects.

“San Francisco is ready to transition to full public power, and today we are asking the CPUC to
determine a fair price that will allow us to move forward with the acquisition of our local power
grid,” said Mayor London Breed. “It’s been clear for a long time that full public power is the
right choice for our City and our residents, and we know we can do this job more safely, more
reliably, and more cost effectively than PG&E. It’s time for everyone in the City to have access
to clean, reliable, affordable public power.”

Mayor London Breed announced the City’s valuation request at an event at Zuckerberg San
Francisco General Hospital, which for decades has relied on the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission (SFPUC) to provide clean, safe, reliable, and affordable power for its critical
facilities and has been instrumental in the City’s widely lauded COVID-19 pandemic response.
The hospital is also the site of a major joint research and academic facility with the University of
California San Francisco, whose construction was delayed by PG&E’s intransigence, driving up
costs by an estimated $30,000.
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San Francisco’s local elected leaders remain united behind the transition to public power, all of
whom have urged PG&E to reconsider the City’s acquisition offer. Mayor Breed was joined by
State Senator Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco), City Attorney Dennis Herrera, Board of
Supervisors President Shamann Walton, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission President
Sophie Maxwell and community advocates. In addition to having the support of City and local
officials, transitioning to public power has public support; a 2019 poll found that nearly 70% of
San Franciscans support switching to public power.

In the valuation petition filed today by City Attorney Dennis Herrera, the City asks the CPUC to
determine the just compensation to be paid for PG&E’s electricity distribution assets that serve
San Francisco. State law gives the CPUC the authority to set definitive valuations for utility
assets. San Francisco’s petition also proposes a process for the Commission to assess the value of
PG&E’s electric facilities.

“San Francisco has been a reliable public power provider for more than a century. PG&E is the
poster child for a utility that puts profit ahead of people. San Franciscans have had enough,” said
City Attorney Dennis Herrera. “This proposed acquisition makes sense for San Francisco, it
makes sense for PG&E’s other customers, and, quite frankly, it makes sense for PG&E. San
Francisco is offering billions of dollars that could be used to pay fire victims and keep PG&E
from sticking customers with rate hikes. San Francisco made a very fair offer to buy PG&E’s
local assets. PG&E refused. Now we’ll use an impartial process to set the definitive value of this
infrastructure so we can move forward.”

“The current relationship between San Francisco and PG&E is untenable. For years, San
Franciscans have paid the price for PG&E’s service delays and cost overruns, with terrible
impacts on public facilities across the City, from schools and homeless shelters to affordable
housing and recreational facilities,” said Senate Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco). “This has never
been acceptable, and it’s getting worse. It’s time for the City to reconsider its options for getting
out from under PG&E’s corporate monopoly, and | urge the CPUC to act quickly to provide a
fair valuation of PG&E’s assets so this acquisition can move forward.”

San Francisco has demonstrated its effectiveness as a local power provider for more than 100
years, delivering clean, reliable hydropower from Hetch Hetchy Power to customers like the San
Francisco International Airport, the San Francisco Zoo, and Zuckerberg San Francisco General
Hospital. Hetch Hetchy Power employs hundreds of highly skilled, locally-based union workers
throughout the SFPUC operations area, which stretches from the Sierra Nevada mountains to the
Pacific Ocean. The SFPUC’s CleanPowerSF program also purchases renewable power for over
370,000 homes and businesses. Collectively, the two programs provide more than 70% of the
electricity consumed in San Francisco.

San Francisco has also set a goal of shifting to 100% renewable electricity by 2025 and 100%
renewable energy by 2040—a target that will be easier to achieve if San Francisco had local
control of its power grid. San Francisco would use bonds secured by future revenues from
electricity generation to acquire PG&E’s infrastructure, so no funds for existing City services,
like affordable housing, libraries or addressing homelessness, would be affected.
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“Our public power and utility system has proven itself over more than a century, and the City is
prepared to begin managing the rest of our local grid. The Board of Supervisors unanimously
supported our original offer in 2019, and city leaders continue to believe public power is in the
best interest of San Francisco,” said Board of Supervisors President Shamann Walton. “San
Francisco has always had the right to full public power, and we are committed to make it a
reality.”

In today’s valuation request, the City outlines a long list of reasons for pursuing today’s petition,
noting PG&E’s ongoing failure to provide adequate service to both the City’s utility and
individual ratepayers, resulting in years of disrupted services and millions of dollars in
unnecessary costs. In one recent case outlined in a new white paper produced by the SFPUC,
PG&E has pushed for the City to pay as much as $1 million per streetlight connection for a series
of unneeded upgrades.

More information on projects facing delays can be found at OurCityOurPower.org. The petition
also notes that the CPUC itself has described PG&E’s recent safety history as ranging “from
dismal to abysmal,” including multiple local incidents resulting in injuries and property
damage.

“PG&E has not been a good partner to San Francisco—undermining the City’s ability to provide
core services, imposing unnecessary costs on our ratepayers, and making it harder for public
power providers to do our jobs,” said San Francisco Public Utilities Commission President
Sophie Maxwell. “The City has sought unsuccessfully to resolve these issues for years, through
litigation and direct negotiation. It has become clear that acquiring and assuming responsibility
for the distribution system is the only way for San Francisco to operate its electric utility in a
way that meets the City’s objectives.”

San Francisco’s acquisition of PG&E’s assets would not burden PG&E’s remaining ratepayers,
and very well could benefit them. San Francisco is a small part of PG&E’s large service territory,
representing less than 8% of PG&E’s total electric retail accounts in 2019. PG&E’s revenues per
San Francisco customer are smaller than its revenues per PG&E customer outside the City. San
Francisco’s acquisition would reduce the size of PG&E’s remaining service territory and its
service obligations. This alone could benefit remaining ratepayers as PG&E would no longer
have any expenses or obligations related to the upkeep — and future capital needs — of the assets
purchased by San Francisco. Relieving PG&E of this obligation can help it focus on critical
needs elsewnhere.

The full valuation request is available here:
https://www.sfcityattorney.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/CCSFs-CPUC-Valuation-Petition-7-

27-21.pdf.

More information on the City’s transition to public power is available here:
OurCityOurPower.org.
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emerged from bankruptcy in 2020. PG&E rejected both San Francisco purchase offers, and in

the last year has begun seeking to impose more than $1 billion in unnecessary charges on City

customers while delayving basic power hookups on a range of public buildings from schools to
new transit projects.

“San Francisco is ready to transition to full public power, and today we are asking the CPUC
to determine a fair price that will allow us to move forward with the acquisition of our local
power grid,” said Mayor London Breed. “It’s been clear for a long time that full public power
is the right choice for our City and our residents, and we know we can do this job more safely,
more reliably, and more cost effectively than PG&E. It’s time for everyone in the City to have
access to clean, reliable, affordable public power.”

Mayor London Breed announced the City’s valuation request at an event at Zuckerberg San
Francisco General Hospital, which for decades has relied on the San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission (SFPUC) to provide clean, safe, reliable, and affordable power for its critical
facilities and has been instrumental in the City’s widely lauded COVID-19 pandemic
response. The hospital is also the site of a major joint research and academic facility with the
University of California San Francisco, whose construction was delayed by PG&E’s
intransigence, driving up costs by an estimated $30,000.

San Francisco’s local elected leaders remain united behind the transition to public power, all
of whom have urged PG&E to reconsider the City’s acquisition offer. Mayor Breed was joined
by State Senator Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco), City Attorney Dennis Herrera, Board of
Supervisors President Shamann Walton, San Francisco Public Utilities Commission President
Sophie Maxwell and community advocates. In addition to having the support of City and local
officials, transitioning to public power has public support; a 2019 poll found that nearly 70%
of San Franciscans support switching to public power.

In the valuation petition filed today by City Attorney Dennis Herrera, the City asks the CPUC
to determine the just compensation to be paid for PG&E’s electricity distribution assets that
serve San Francisco. State law gives the CPUC the authority to set definitive valuations for
utility assets. San Francisco’s petition also proposes a process for the Commission to assess
the value of PG&E’s electric facilities.

“San Francisco has been a reliable public power provider for more than a century. PG&E is
the poster child for a utility that puts profit ahead of people. San Franciscans have had
enough,” said City Attorney Dennis Herrera. “This proposed acquisition makes sense for San
Francisco, it makes sense for PG&E’s other customers, and, quite frankly, it makes sense for
PG&E. San Francisco is offering billions of dollars that could be used to pay fire victims and
keep PG&E from sticking customers with rate hikes. San Francisco made a very fair offer to
buy PG&E’s local assets. PG&E refused. Now we’ll use an impartial process to set the
definitive value of this infrastructure so we can move forward.”

“The current relationship between San Francisco and PG&E is untenable. For years, San
Franciscans have paid the price for PG&E’s service delays and cost overruns, with terrible
impacts on public facilities across the City, from schools and homeless shelters to affordable
housing and recreational facilities,” said Senate Scott Wiener (D-San Francisco). “This has
never been acceptable, and it’s getting worse. It’s time for the City to reconsider its options for
getting out from under PG&E’s corporate monopoly, and I urge the CPUC to act quickly to
provide a fair valuation of PG&E’s assets so this acquisition can move forward.”


https://www.sfchronicle.com/local/article/San-Francisco-PG-E-at-odds-again-over-16231506.php
https://www.sfchronicle.com/local/article/San-Francisco-PG-E-at-odds-again-over-16231506.php
https://www.publicpowersf.org/obstruction

San Francisco has demonstrated its effectiveness as a local power provider for more than 100
years, delivering clean, reliable hydropower from Hetch Hetchy Power to customers like the
San Francisco International Airport, the San Francisco Zoo, and Zuckerberg San Francisco
General Hospital. Hetch Hetchy Power employs hundreds of highly skilled, locally-based
union workers throughout the SFPUC operations area, which stretches from the Sierra Nevada
mountains to the Pacific Ocean. The SFPUC’s CleanPowerSF program also purchases
renewable power for over 370,000 homes and businesses. Collectively, the two programs
provide more than 70% of the electricity consumed in San Francisco.

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

“Our public power and utility system has proven itself over more than a century, and the City
is prepared to begin managing the rest of our local grid. The Board of Supervisors
unanimously supported our original offer in 2019, and city leaders continue to believe public
power is in the best interest of San Francisco,” said Board of Supervisors President Shamann
Walton. “San Francisco has always had the right to full public power, and we are committed to
make it a reality.”

In today’s valuation request, the City outlines a long list of reasons for pursuing today’s
petition, noting PG&E’s ongoing failure to provide adequate service to both the City’s utility
and individual ratepayers, resulting in years of disrupted services and millions of dollars in
unnecessary costs. In one recent case outlined in a new white paper produced by the SFPUC,
PG&E has pushed for the City to pay as much as $1 million per streetlight connection for a
series of unneeded upgrades.

More information on projects facing delays can be found at OurCityOurPower.org. The
petition also notes that the CPUC itself has described PG&E’s recent safety history as ranging
“from dismal to abysmal,” including multiple local incidents resulting in injuries and property
damage.

“PG&E has not been a good partner to San Francisco—undermining the City’s ability to
provide core services, imposing unnecessary costs on our ratepayers, and making it harder for
public power providers to do our jobs,” said San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
President Sophie Maxwell. “The City has sought unsuccessfully to resolve these issues for
years, through litigation and direct negotiation. It has become clear that acquiring and
assuming responsibility for the distribution system is the only way for San Francisco to
operate its electric utility in a way that meets the City’s objectives.”

San Francisco’s acquisition of PG&E’s assets would not burden PG&E’s remaining
ratepayers, and very well could benefit them. San Francisco is a small part of PG&E’s large
service territory, representing less than 8% of PG&E’s total electric retail accounts in 2019.
PG&E’s revenues per San Francisco customer are smaller than its revenues per PG&E
customer outside the City. San Francisco’s acquisition would reduce the size of PG&E’s
remaining service territory and its service obligations. This alone could benefit remaining
ratepayers as PG&E would no longer have any expenses or obligations related to the upkeep —
and future capital needs — of the assets purchased by San Francisco. Relieving PG&E of this
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obligation can help it focus on critical needs elsewhere.

The full Valuatlon request is available here:

Petltlon 7- 27 21.pdf.

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
Subject: FW: HPFC report

Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2021 9:26:19 AM
Attachments: Report to HPC July 2021.pdf

Per Commission President Matsuda’s request.

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

From: "Matsuda, Diane (CPC)" <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>
Date: Monday, July 26, 2021 at 4:16 PM

To: "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>

Subject: Fw: HPFC report

Jonas
Can you distribute to the HPC?

Thanks
Diane

From: Diane Matsuda <dianematsuda@hotmail.com>
Sent: Monday, July 26, 2021 3:33 PM

To: Matsuda, Diane (CPC) <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>
Subject: Fw: HPFC report

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from
untrusted sources.

From: Robert Cherny <robt.cherny@gmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, July 24, 2021 4:45 PM

To: Diane Matsuda <dianematsuda@hotmail.com>
Subject: HPFC report
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Report to HPC on Historic Preservation Fund Committee Activities, July 2021

The Historic Preservation Fund Committee was created in 2005 to recommend and
oversee disbursement of a $2.5 million fund established by a settlement agreement
signed by the Redevelopment Agency of the City and County of San Francisco, San
Franciscans Upholding the Downtown Plan, and San Franciscans for Preservation
Planning. The original fund has been supplemented only by accrued interest and a
one-time augmentation by a Supervisor. The committee consists of six members, each
representing a city agency or a non-profit organization committed to historic
preservation. The current members with the source of their appointment are:

Dennis Antenore, San Franciscans for Preservation Planning

Robert Cherny, Historic Preservation Commission

Courtney Damkroger, Mayor

Gretchen Heckman, Office of Community Investment and Infrastructure, as

Successor to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

Woody LaBounty, acting, San Francisco Heritage

Mrs. G. Bland Platt, Board of Supervisors

Mark Ryser, San Francisco Beautiful
Mr. Ryser serves as committee chair. The fund is administered by the Mayor's Office of
Economic and Workforce Development, which also provides staff support to the
committee. | have been the representative from HPC since 2013.

In early 2020, HPFC members learned that all the funds had been committed. Since
then, the committee has continued its oversight function, reviewing progress on existing
projects and, as appropriate, authorizing payments for work completed.

Two projects are still in early stages:
e Historic Context Statemen, The Inner Sunset. Committee members have
reviewed the initial deliverables and approved the first payment.
e Citywide Survey, Planning Department: HPFC has provided some funding for
this project, and two HPFC members serve on the advisory committee.

Four projects are nearing completion:

e Historic Context Statement, San Francisco and the New Deal: Rebuilding the
City, 1933-1943. Committee members have reviewed and approved the final
draft.

e Historic Context Statement, Nuestra Historia: San Francisco Latino Historic
Context Statement. Committee members have reviewed a penultimate draft.

o Historic Context Statement, Haight-Ashbury, the Counterculture, and the
Summer of Love, 1960-1967. Committee members have reviewed a penultimate
draft.

Since | last reported to you, the following projects have been completed:
e Ocean Avenue commercial district survey of historic resources, district
assessment, and design guidance.





Historic Context Statement, Gardens in the City: San Francisco's Residence
Parks, 1906-1940. Final draft with Planning Department, to come to HPC in the
near future.

Landmark nomination for the Glen Park BART station, approved by HPC in 2019.
History Days, 2018.

Preservation and exhibition projects of the Treasure Island Museum.

Museum exhibit by the Tenderloin Museum.

Collections assessment by the GLBT Historical Society.

Shaping San Francisco: More than 600 issues of neighborhood newspapers
have been digitized and are available online at
https://archive.org/details/sanfrancisconewspapers.

OpenSF: Some 54,000 historic photos have been digitized and are now
available online at http://opensfhistory.org.

San Francisco African American Historic Context Statement. Final draft with
Planning Department since 2015; indefinitely continued by HPC.

As the fund has dwindled down to the present level, the committee has discussed how
and whether there should be some new version of HPFC. We are agreed that the past
sixteen years' work has clearly benefited the city, resulting in the approval of a
significant number of landmark nominations and historic context statements, as well as
other preservation projects, nearly all of which would not otherwise have been funded.
Among the considerations the committee has discussed for any renewal of such historic
preservation funding are the following:

How can there be consistent funding?

Where should a future committee be located within city government? The
possibilities include the Mayor's Office (current location), the Board of
Supervisors, and the Planning Department. All have pros and cons. Closely
related to this question is the question of how such a fund can be best protected
from political pressures. One possibility has been suggested: a Charitable Trust
Department (see City Charter, section 5.100-5.106).

How should members be chosen? Should there be fixed terms or indefinite
terms (the current situation)? Possibilities regarding selection of members
include:

o Mayor and Supervisors appoint to designated seats similar to HPC, e.g.,
architectural preservation specialist(s), history specialist(s), public
members, etc.

o Mayor and Supervisors appoint at the recommendation of designated
groups, e.g., HPC, Heritage, other local preservation organizations, local
historical associations, an arrangement similar to the current committee.

Respectfully submitted,
Robert W. Cherny






| had meant to send this to you some time ago, but it fell through the cracks. Since then another
project has been completed, so perhaps the delay was, in the end, timely.

If you let me know when it is scheduled, I'll try to attend.
Robert W. Cherny

Professor emeritus of History
San Francisco State University



From: CPC-Commissions Secretary

Cc: Taylor, Michelle (CPC); Feliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: Form Submission - New Form
Date: Monday, July 26, 2021 9:30:06 AM

Commission Affairs

San Francisco Planning

49 South Van Ness Avenue, Suite 1400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 628.652.7600 | www.sfplanning.org

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

From: Squarespace <form-submission@squarespace.info>

Sent: Thursday, July 22, 2021 6:05 PM

To: CPC-Commissions Secretary <commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>
Subject: Form Submission - New Form

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

Sent via form submission from Monumental Reckoning

Name: Shamsher Virk

Email: shamsher@zerol.org

Message: Dear Commissioners,

My name is Shamsher Virk and I represent ZERO1, a media arts nonprofit based in the
Mission District of San Francisco.

James Weldon Johnson's song Lift Every Voice and Sing is an important cultural artifact in
American history and one worthy of revisiting in this moment of national reckoning around
race.

By projecting the lyrics of LIFT EVERY VOICE at the top of the Temple of Music in Golden
Gate Park's Music Concourse, Monumental Reckoning will inspire us to revisit the aspirations
of this nation and consider the words we use to celebrate our union.
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mailto:shamsher@zero1.org

I support this project and hope you will as well.

Sincerely,

Shamsher Virk
Executive Director, ZERO1



From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $4.5 MILLION IN GRANTS TO OVER 560
SMALL BUSINESSES

Date: Friday, July 23, 2021 2:45:21 PM

Attachments: 07.23.2021 SF Small Business Relief Fund.pdf

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

Date: Friday, July 23, 2021 at 2:20 PM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice @sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $4.5 MILLION IN
GRANTS TO OVER 560 SMALL BUSINESSES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, July 23, 2021

Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org

**%* PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES $4.5 MILLION IN

GRANTS TO OVER 560 SMALL BUSINESSES

Small Business Relief Grants will award businesses with grants between $5,000 and $25,000
to help alleviate the impact of Stay at Home orders due to COVID-19

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the Office of Economic and Workforce
Development today announced over $4.5 million in financial relief for more than 560 small
businesses in the latest round of small business grants. The Small Business Relief Grants are
expected to award over 700 businesses once the application review is complete. Funds can be
used for rent relief, payroll, equipment, utilities and bills, and any other expenses needed to
stay open, operate their business, and continue to serve the community.

“From the beginning of this pandemic, when we had to lock down the City to keep our
residents safe, we knew that it was going to have a major impact on our small businesses and
their employees,” said Mayor Breed. “That’s why we’ve been doing everything we can as a
city, from waiving millions in fees to passing important legislation like Prop H and Shared
Spaces. Our small businesses are going to lead our economic recovery, and these grants are
going to help make that happen.”

The goal of the San Francisco Small Business Relief Fund is to provide immediate relief to
help stabilize small business operations by offering grants of $5,000, $10,000, or $25,000. The
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LONDON N. BREED
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

Small Business Relief Grants will award businesses with grants between $5,000 and $25,000 to
help alleviate the impact of Stay at Home orders due to COVID-19

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
used for rent relief, payroll, equipment, utilities and bills, and any other expenses needed to stay
open, operate their business, and continue to serve the community.

“From the beginning of this pandemic, when we had to lock down the City to keep our residents
safe, we knew that it was going to have a major impact on our small businesses and their
employees,” said Mayor Breed. “That’s why we’ve been doing everything we can as a city, from
waiving millions in fees to passing important legislation like Prop H and Shared Spaces. Our
small businesses are going to lead our economic recovery, and these grants are going to help
make that happen.”

The goal of the San Francisco Small Business Relief Fund is to provide immediate relief to help
stabilize small business operations by offering grants of $5,000, $10,000, or $25,000. The fund
targets anchor small businesses that contribute to the culture and vibrancy of neighborhood
commercial corridors such as the Bayview, Central Market/Tenderloin, Chinatown, Excelsior,
Lower Fillmore, Mission or in cultural districts including Japantown, Calle 24, SoMa Pilipinas,
Transgender, Leather & LGBTQ, Castro LGBTQ, American Indian, and African American Arts
and Cultural. It also supports small businesses operated by people of color, women, long-
standing businesses and storefronts, those most impacted by Stay at Home orders, and those
excluded from or otherwise unable to access state and federal programs.

Over 50% of the grant recipients so far are women-owned, and nearly 80% are minority-owned
small businesses that operate on thin margins. The program received a total of 843 applications
and expects to award a total of over 700 businesses once the review process is complete.

“Delivering relief to our small businesses offers a lifeline essential to San Francisco’s recovery
and infuses funding right into the hearts of our neighborhoods, said Assessor-Recorder Joaquin
Torres. “After so much sacrifice to help protect public health, these grants our helping our small
businesses bring jobs back into the community, vitality to our neighborhoods and with it the
hope that better days are ahead. With this needed support, small businesses can drive the
recovery we all want to see and make our city shine.”

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

"Small businesses are the lifeblood of San Francisco neighborhoods and employ hundreds of
thousands of workers. For immigrants, women, people of color and working-class San
Franciscans, running a small business is often an alternative to minimum wage jobs and can be a
unique path to building wealth for their families and their communities. These grants will help
small businesses get back on their feet and keep our neighborhood commercial corridors active
and vibrant,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen.

Mayor Breed led a supplemental appropriation that included this grant program, and a zero-
interest loan program to provide small businesses with working capital to help offset losses
resulting from the pandemic. In July, the San Francisco Small Business Recovery Loan Fund
was launched with the California Rebuilding Fund, which leverages investments to maximize the
available loans for small businesses.

Working with State-backed lending partners and local community-based partners, the City has
now leveraged additional funding to offer small businesses zero-interest loans ranging up to
$100,000. Small businesses can apply online at www.CALoanFund.org. The program is being
administered through the California Rebuilding Fund in partnership with KIVA and local
Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs), including Main Street Launch, Mission
Economic Development Agency, CDC Small Business Finance, Pacific Community Ventures,
and the National Asian American Coalition.

“These funds will help me hire three more employees and extend my hours. During the pandemic
| had to cut my hours because | didn’t have employees and business was so slow,” said Lamea
Abuelrous, Owner of Temo’s Café. “Now I have more foot traffic and my customers are asking
me to stay open later. | have a lot of support from the community, I will also be remodeling my
shop, painting, buying new tables and chairs.”

“The Small Business Relief Fund has been a lifeline for many of our small businesses—
providing urgent capital to keep them open and operating while also keeping workers on
payroll,” said Kate Sofis, Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development. “Our
small businesses are not out of the woods, the need for additional financial relief extends beyond
this pandemic. Through the leadership of Mayor Breed and the Board of the Supervisors, the
Office of Economic and Workforce Development will continue to program additional
investments and make available more grant dollars with our community partners for our small
business community in the months ahead.”

“The SF Relief Grant highlights the Mayor's ability to listen and respond to what small
businesses on the ground were in desperate need of,” said William Ortiz-Cartagena, San
Francisco Small Business Commissioner. “The application process was simple therefore making
the process equitable! This grant will allow our businesses in the most disadvantaged
communities, that were hardest hit by the pandemic, live to fight another day. Gracias.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141
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MAYOR

Since the beginning of the pandemic, San Francisco has provided immediate and ongoing
support for small businesses, including making available more than $52.8 million in grants and
loans to support more than 3,000 small businesses, in addition to tens of millions of dollars in fee
and tax deferrals, and assistance applying for state and federal funding. This includes legislation

introduced and signed by Mayor Breed to waive $5 million in fees and taxes for entertainment
and nightlife venues and small restaurants.

HH#
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fund targets anchor small businesses that contribute to the culture and vibrancy of
neighborhood commercial corridors such as the Bayview, Central Market/Tenderloin,
Chinatown, Excelsior, Lower Fillmore, Mission or in cultural districts including Japantown,
Calle 24, SoMa Pilipinas, Transgender, Leather & LGBTQ, Castro LGBTQ, American Indian,
and African American Arts and Cultural. It also supports small businesses operated by people
of color, women, long-standing businesses and storefronts, those most impacted by Stay at
Home orders, and those excluded from or otherwise unable to access state and federal
programs.

Over 50% of the grant recipients so far are women-owned, and nearly 80% are minority-
owned small businesses that operate on thin margins. The program received a total of 843
applications and expects to award a total of over 700 businesses once the review process is
complete.

“Delivering relief to our small businesses offers a lifeline essential to San Francisco’s
recovery and infuses funding right into the hearts of our neighborhoods, said Assessor-
Recorder Joaquin Torres. “After so much sacrifice to help protect public health, these grants
our helping our small businesses bring jobs back into the community, vitality to our
neighborhoods and with it the hope that better days are ahead. With this needed support, small
businesses can drive the recovery we all want to see and make our city shine.”

"Small businesses are the lifeblood of San Francisco neighborhoods and employ hundreds of
thousands of workers. For immigrants, women, people of color and working-class San
Franciscans, running a small business is often an alternative to minimum wage jobs and can be
a unique path to building wealth for their families and their communities. These grants will
help small businesses get back on their feet and keep our neighborhood commercial corridors
active and vibrant,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen.

Mayor Breed led a supplemental appropriation that included this grant program, and a zero-
interest loan program to provide small businesses with working capital to help offset losses
resulting from the pandemic. In July, the San Francisco Small Business Recovery Loan Fund
was launched with the California Rebuilding Fund, which leverages investments to maximize
the available loans for small businesses.

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
Community Development Financial Institutions (CDFIs), including Main Street Launch,
Mission Economic Development Agency, CDC Small Business Finance, Pacific Community
Ventures, and the National Asian American Coalition.

“These funds will help me hire three more employees and extend my hours. During the
pandemic I had to cut my hours because I didn’t have employees and business was so slow,”
said Lamea Abuelrous, Owner of Temo’s Café. “Now I have more foot traffic and my
customers are asking me to stay open later. I have a lot of support from the community, I will
also be remodeling my shop, painting, buying new tables and chairs.”

“The Small Business Relief Fund has been a lifeline for many of our small businesses—



providing urgent capital to keep them open and operating while also keeping workers on
payroll,” said Kate Sofis, Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development.
“Our small businesses are not out of the woods, the need for additional financial relief extends
beyond this pandemic. Through the leadership of Mayor Breed and the Board of the
Supervisors, the Office of Economic and Workforce Development will continue to program
additional investments and make available more grant dollars with our community partners for
our small business community in the months ahead.”

“The SF Relief Grant highlights the Mayor's ability to listen and respond to what small
businesses on the ground were in desperate need of,” said William Ortiz-Cartagena, San
Francisco Small Business Commissioner. “The application process was simple therefore
making the process equitable! This grant will allow our businesses in the most disadvantaged
communities, that were hardest hit by the pandemic, live to fight another day. Gracias.”

Since the beginning of the pandemic, San Francisco has provided immediate and ongoing
support for small businesses, including making available more than $52.8 million in grants
and loans to support more than 3,000 small businesses, in addition to tens of millions of
dollars in fee and tax deferrals, and assistance applying for state and federal funding. This
includes legislation introduced and signed by Mayor Breed to waive $5 million in fees and
taxes for entertainment and nightlife venues and small restaurants.
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: TOLAND HALL AND MURAL
Date: Friday, July 23, 2021 9:43:32 AM

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

From: "WongAlA@aol.com" <wongaia@aol.com>

Reply-To: "WongAlA@aol.com" <wongaia@aol.com>

Date: Friday, July 23, 2021 at 8:30 AM

To: "Newman, Brian (UCSF)" <Brian.Newman@ucsf.edu>, "Wong, Lily (UCSF)"
<lily.wong3@ucsf.edu>

Cc: "Matsuda, Diane (CPC)" <diane.matsuda@sfgov.org>, CPC-Commissions Secretary
<commissions.secretary@sfgov.org>, "lonin, Jonas (CPC)" <jonas.ionin@sfgov.org>,
"wlabounty@sfheritage.org" <wlabounty@sfheritage.org>

Subject: TOLAND HALL AND MURAL

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted
sources.

PRESERVING TOLAND HALL’S LEGACY: DO NO HARM
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TO: UCSF Toland Hall Murals Task Force (please forward to members and others)
RE: REBUILDING TOLAND HALL IN CENTER OF NEW FACILITY

Architecturally and spatially, Toland Hall is a beautiful, classic gathering place,
embodying much of UCSF’s memories and history. The energy of tens of thousands
of students, lecturers and medical professionals flow through this hall. A scientific
approach to design would study all options, including a recreated Toland Hall as the
heart and centerpiece of the new building.

Plorln all hypotheses, proposals and studies should include the reconstruction of
all in the new research and medical building. Besides the significant murals,
Toland Hall itself is a spatial tour de force, embodying rich UCSF/ medical history and
a lineage of notable lecturers, speakers and seminal events. It's a special place.
Historic places and monuments are routinely relocated. Technical analysis and cost
estimates would better inform decision-making, benefactors and fundraising. Best

Regards, Howard Wong, AIA
UCSF NEWS: UCSF Hires Conservation Firm to Move Zakheim Murals from Selsmlcally Vulnerable

kh
murals- selsmlcally-vulnerabl Safely movmg the large, mostly curved murals, which are brittle and in
some cases have suffered prior water damage, is expected to be a challenging task. Assuming the
murals are moved successfully, the University will seek a permanent home for the collection where they
will be available for public viewing.
TOLAND HALL MURALS: Brought To Light (2015):

https://blogs.library.ucsf.edu/broughttolight/tag/toland-hall/
FOUNDSF UCSF s Depressmn Era Medlcal H|story Murals (V|deos)
/ind E

A HISTORY OF UCSF https: llhlstoLy library. ucsf edu/

HUGH HUGER TOLAND (1806-1880): https://history.library.ucsf.edu/toland.html

HISTORY OF MEDICINE IN CALIFORNIA Articulated in Frescoes: The Story Behind the Murals of
Toland Hall, UCSF A Research Manuscript http://citeseerx.ist.psu.edu/viewdoc/download?

doi=10.1.1.675.6932&rep=rep1&type=pdf
* % % * % *x % %
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From: Ionin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)
Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS IMPLEMENTING A

SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM MENTAL HEALTH AND
SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:14:42 PM

Attachments: 07.22.21 Treatment Bed Expansion.pdf

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

Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 at 10:56 AM

To: "Press Office, Mayor (MYR)" <mayorspressoffice@sfgov.org>

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS
IMPLEMENTING A SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING
FROM MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, July 22, 2021
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, mayorspressoffice(@sfgov.or

##% PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR LONDON BREED ANNOUNCES SAN FRANCISCO IS
IMPLEMENTING A SIGNIFICANT EXPANSION OF
TREATMENT BEDS FOR PEOPLE SUFFERING FROM
MENTAL HEALTH AND SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS

As part of the Mayor’s budget investments, San Francisco will create over 400 new treatment
beds, a 20% expansion

San Francisco, CA — Mayor London N. Breed and the San Francisco Department of Public
Health (DPH) today announced that San Francisco is implementing the expansion of over 400
new treatment beds for people experiencing mental health and substance use issues. This
expansion of treatment beds will provide more options for people in need to receive
appropriate services that match their situation, while also providing San Francisco’s new
Street Response Teams with additional placements for clients they interact with.

The expansion plans represent a 20% increase in the City’s residential treatment capacity. In
2021 alone, San Francisco will see 140 new beds opened, with significant progress made
toward filling the gaps in critical needs areas identified in the 2020 Behavioral Health Bed
Optimization Report. Since Mayor Breed took office, San Francisco has added more than 100
treatment beds across San Francisco’s system of care.
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
expansion of treatment beds will provide more options for people in need to receive appropriate
services that match their situation, while also providing San Francisco’s new Street Response
Teams with additional placements for clients they interact with.

The expansion plans represent a 20% increase in the City’s residential treatment capacity. In
2021 alone, San Francisco will see 140 new beds opened, with significant progress made toward
filling the gaps in critical needs areas identified in the 2020 Behavioral Health Bed Optimization
Report. Since Mayor Breed took office, San Francisco has added more than 100 treatment beds
across San Francisco’s system of care.

“This is an unprecedented expansion of our system of care and treatment for people with mental
health and substance use disorders,” said Mayor London N. Breed. “We are responding with the
urgency that this crisis deserves, while saving millions of dollars by removing bottlenecks in the
system so that people can move into lower, less costly levels of care when they are ready. Each
one of these placement facilities takes a tremendous amount of time and effort to make happen,
but we should see the benefits for years to come.”

These new treatment beds will allow San Francisco’s new street outreach teams, including the
Street Crisis Response Teams and the Street Wellness Response Teams, with additional
placements that can serve the clients they interact with. There are now five Street Crisis
Response Teams operating in San Francisco, responding to about 500 calls monthly. Mayor
Breed included funding in this year’s budget for five Street Wellness Response Teams, which
will begin to respond to “wellness check” calls, which total roughly 17,000 annually.

The expansion effort is guided by recommendations from the Behavioral Health Bed
Optimization Project report in 2020, as well as the Mental Health SF legislation in 2019, and
utilization data that identified the types of treatment in highest need. These new beds and
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facilities are at various stages of development, with some ready for opening in 2021 and others in
stages of planning and design.

“Coming out of COVID, our biggest public health crisis is the thousands of people living on our
streets with untreated mental health and substance use disorders. Getting these sick people off
the streets and into appropriate treatment beds will save lives and make San Francisco a safer and
healthier place for all,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.

“People who are mentally ill and addicted to drugs need immediate access to treatment and care.
Expanding our city's treatment beds and Street Crisis Response teams through Mental Health SF
will better ensure services are available, accessible and effective,” said Supervisor Matt Haney.
“Fully funding Mental Health SF was a top priority for us during this year's budget process, and
we worked together to expand much needed treatment beds, care coordination, and street
intervention. These treatment beds cannot come soon enough.”

“This expansion of available treatment facilities is an essential part of fully implementing Mental
Health SF. We must have places for people in crisis to get the care they desperately need and to
stop the revolving door that returns people to the streets,” said Supervisor Hillary Ronen.

“We are not only improving patient flow so that individuals receive timely care and treatment,
we are also developing innovative models of care to target the unique needs we see in the
community,” said Dr. Naveena Bobba, Deputy Director of Health. “The investments we are
making in the expansion in our residential care and treatment system will be critical to help us
meet our goal for rapid access to recovery-oriented care and treatment.”

Several innovative types of treatment and care programs designed to meet the diverse needs of
people with behavioral health challenges are being developed, including:

e The 20-bed SOMA RISE Center will open in the fall of 2021 as part of the City's
response to the drug overdose crisis. It will offer a safe indoor space for people who have
used methamphetamine or other substances, monitor their health while intoxicated, and
connecting them with other health and social services.

e A 10-bed residential treatment facility specifically designed to treat young adults with
serious mental health and/or substance use disorders is under design.

e Neighborhood-based psychiatric respite facilities for people experiencing homelessness
to shelter in a safe, supportive environment where they can also access ongoing care.

Meanwhile, as board-and-care homes shutter due to the escalating costs of housing, DPH is also
in active negotiations to acquire facilities to accommodate at least 73 residential care beds to
support people with mental health issues who require assistance with activities of daily living.
Some of these will support the elderly. Critically, DPH is also creating 140 new beds to support
people leaving residential substance use treatment — a last step in skill-building before
independent housing.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

LONDON N. BREED
MAYOR

In May, DPH alongside community partners PRC/Baker Places, the Salvation Army, and
Tipping Point Community opened Hummingbird Valencia, a psychiatric respite facility for
people experiencing homelessness in the Mission and Castro neighborhoods. It is now operating
at full capacity with 30 overnight beds and 20 daytime drop-in spaces.

For the latest update on San Francisco’s residential care and treatment expansion, go to:
sf.gov/residential-care-and-treatment.

San Francisco has also made available a daily update of available mental health and substance
use treatment beds at: FindTreatmentSF.org.
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“This is an unprecedented expansion of our system of care and treatment for people with
mental health and substance use disorders,” said Mayor London N. Breed. “We are responding
with the urgency that this crisis deserves, while saving millions of dollars by removing
bottlenecks in the system so that people can move into lower, less costly levels of care when
they are ready. Each one of these placement facilities takes a tremendous amount of time and
effort to make happen, but we should see the benefits for years to come.”

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
facilities are at various stages of development, with some ready for opening in 2021 and others
in stages of planning and design.

“Coming out of COVID, our biggest public health crisis is the thousands of people living on
our streets with untreated mental health and substance use disorders. Getting these sick people
off the streets and into appropriate treatment beds will save lives and make San Francisco a
safer and healthier place for all,” said Supervisor Rafael Mandelman.

“People who are mentally ill and addicted to drugs need immediate access to treatment and
care. Expanding our city's treatment beds and Street Crisis Response teams through Mental
Health SF will better ensure services are available, accessible and effective,” said Supervisor
Matt Haney. “Fully funding Mental Health SF was a top priority for us during this year's
budget process, and we worked together to expand much needed treatment beds, care
coordination, and street intervention. These treatment beds cannot come soon enough.”

“This expansion of available treatment facilities is an essential part of fully implementing
Mental Health SF. We must have places for people in crisis to get the care they desperately
need and to stop the revolving door that returns people to the streets,” said Supervisor Hillary
Ronen.

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
¢ The 20-bed SOMA RISE Center will open in the fall of 2021 as part of the City's
response to the drug overdose crisis. It will offer a safe indoor space for people who
have used methamphetamine or other substances, monitor their health while intoxicated,
and connecting them with other health and social services.



A 10-bed residential treatment facility specifically designed to treat young adults with
serious mental health and/or substance use disorders is under design.

e Neighborhood-based psychiatric respite facilities for people experiencing homelessness
to shelter in a safe, supportive environment where they can also access ongoing care.

Meanwhile, as board-and-care homes shutter due to the escalating costs of housing, DPH is
also in active negotiations to acquire facilities to accommodate at least 73 residential care beds
to support people with mental health issues who require assistance with activities of daily
living. Some of these will support the elderly. Critically, DPH is also creating 140 new beds to
support people leaving residential substance use treatment — a last step in skill-building before
independent housing.

In May, DPH alongside community partners PRC/Baker Places, the Salvation Army, and
Tipping Point Community opened Hummingbird Valencia, a psychiatric respite facility for
people experiencing homelessness in the Mission and Castro neighborhoods. It is now
operating at full capacity with 30 overnight beds and 20 daytime drop-in spaces.

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
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